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Concept of Cover Design
China Resources Enterprise, Limited is committed to developing its core businesses —
retail, beer, food and beverage — with the mission of becoming the largest consumer
goods company in China. Despite short term market fluctuations in the past year, we
sustained the steady expansion of our businesses and focused on strengthening our
core competitiveness, which enables us to maintain our market leading position. More
importantly, we are ready to seize the tremendous market opportunities when the
economy rebounds.
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COMPANY PROFILE

CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED is listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and is one of the constituent stocks of
Hang Seng Index. The Group focuses on its four core consumer
businesses in China - retail, beer, food and beverage — with the
mission of becoming the largest consumer goods company in China.
The business strategy of our retail division is to adopt hypermarkets as
its main retail format, and to expand its multi-format store network
in regions where the Group has already established a presence.
Through enhancing resource allocation and operational balance
and efficiency, the division targets to become a market leader in
the retail industry. Our multi-format chain stores include “Z£H &
Z CR Vanguard”, “#k & Suguo”, “Er4428 Fun2”, “Ole'”, "blt”,
“V>nGO", “Voi_la!”, "FE Chinese Arts & Crafts”, “ZEH%E CR
Care”, "5&5& VIVO" and " A FEFMNEE Pacific Coffee”, etc. As the
largest brewer in China, the Group boasts “Z £ Snow”, China’s
best-selling single beer brand by sales volume. The Group is also
the largest supplier of Chinese foodstuffs in Hong Kong and has
established a vertically-integrated high quality food supply chain
that encompasses research and development, production and
processing, as well as wholesaling, retalil, logistics and international
trading. The group is actively expanding its presence in the China
market leveraging the “FH % Ng Fung” brand’s reputation in food
quality. "2 C'estbon”, our flagship purified water brand, has a

leading market position in Guangdong Province. In addition, the
Group is vigorously growing the non-alcoholic beverage market in
China with its “ B Kirin” beverage products.
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BRG At RAM - NREEETH)
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B KRTEE -—HFHESE
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According to the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, the sales
volume of the Group’s beer
business in 2011 amounted to
10.23 million tonnes, making it
the first beer company in China
to have sales exceeding 10 million
tonnes in a year.
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The Group rolled-out its "=
@ Ng Fung” rice in "¥#HE
Z CR Vanguard” stores in the
South China region, marking the
Group’s expansion into the rice
distribution business.
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The Group's ranking on Forbes’
Global 2000 list climbed from
981st last year to 861st.
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With a brand value of RMB59.675
billion, "ZE1£ Snow" beer
ranked 28th on the World Brand
Laboratory’s list of “China’s 500
Most Valuable Brands” in 2012,
climbing one spot higher than last
year.
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CR Ng Fung signed a joint
venture agreement with Shenzhen
Wangtaijia Agriculture Exploitation
Co., Ltd. regarding the production
of premium vegetables in Dapeng
Town, Shenzhen.
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The Group ranked 46th on
Fortune China’s Fortune China
500 list.
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"RIFFEMEE Pacific Coffee”
celebrated its 20th anniversary
and the opening of its flagship
store in Hong Kong.
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The Group's beverage division
appointed Ms. Gao Yuanyuan, a
famous artist in China, to endorse
its “EHEE Kirin” Afternoon Tea
products with a contract period of
two years. Ms. Gao was featured
in TV, Internet and outdoor
advertisements for the Group's
products in the fourth quarter of
last year.
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"EHEZXR CR Vanguard”
supermarket expanded its business
into Fujian Province and opened a
new store in Ningde.
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CR Ng Fung signed an acquisition
agreement with Shenzhen Sheng
Zhongda Industry Co., Ltd. to
speed up its development in
China’s rice distribution market.
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The Group successfully held the
“Expedition with SNOW — Breaking
the Snow Line” campaign. The
campaign has been held for eight
consecutive years and has become
a flagship national promotional
campaign for “ZE7E Snow” beer.
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The first self-built "ZEHE XK
CR Vanguard” shopping mall in
China opened in Zhuzhou City,
Hunan Province.
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The Group ranked 428th on
Newsweek’s list of “Green
Rankings — The Global 500".
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The production plant of the Group's
beverage division in Ningxiang,
Changsha commenced construction.
Upon completion, the production
plant will become the largest
beverage production plant for the
Group in Southern China.
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o [#MEXR CR Vanguard ] fE/8 R
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"#EMEBX CR Vanguard”
opened a new store in Haikou,
Hainan Province, its first store in
the province.
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As at the end of December, the
Group opened 26 "V>nGO”
convenience stores at stations of
Hangzhou Metro Line 1, marking
the expansion of the convenience
store chain to the metro system
of Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province.
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“Ole'" organized a cocktail
celebration for its 8th anniversary
in Shanghai. Guests of the
event included consulate and
trade representatives from
12 countries (the US, the UK,
France, Italy, etc.), as well as
government officials and media
representatives.
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"#FEBHEZXR CR Vanguard”
opened a new store in Chengdu,
its first store in Sichuan Province.
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CR Ng Fung strategically disposed
of its marine fishing and aquatic
products processing operation
and signed a share transfer
agreement with Shenzhen
Yonghua Agricultural Products
Co., Ltd. to develop its fresh
produce business.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

EEH Turnover
— BRI 2 ¥ — continuing operations
—BRIEEE 2 ¥ —discontinued operations?
AABMEREMEF]  Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company
— BB XK — continuing operations
— BRI E 7 ¥7%2 - discontinued operations?

FREREFB(EEET) Basic earnings per share3 (HK$)

— B EE — continuing operations
—BRIEEE 2 %552 —discontinued operations?
SRR B B IT) Dividend per share (HK$)
— i — interim
—RHA —final
EEE(RECEER)

Turnover (Continuing Operations)
PEUEE & HKS million
2012

20m 110,164
2010

AR RIEL R
Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Company
7B H B B 7T HKS million

2012

2011 37,839
2010

BE-_Z——F+-A=1+—LFE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E——F % —E-FF
2012 2011 2010
(E) (&%)
(Restated) (Restated)!
BERET BEHET B HET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
126,236 110,164 86,728
- - 410
126,236 110,164 87,138
3,945 3,013 2,862
- - 3,001
3,945 3,013 5,863
$1.64 $1.25 $1.20
- - $1.25
$1.64 $1.25 $2.45
$0.15 $0.15 $0.14
$0.15 $0.32 $0.38
$0.30 $0.47 $0.52
BREXBF(FECEER)

Basic Earnings Per Share (Continuing Operations)
T HKS
2012

2011

2010

BREEFE  REE
Net Assets Per Share: Book Value
BT HKS

2012
2011

2010
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TR R A 2

s Total equity

e ETOFR Consolidated net borrowings

RS Gearing ratio*

BN L Current ratio

BREESE Net assets per share:
—ERmECE%T) — book value (HK$)

B & Notes:

1. HRRMNEBGTERNE 125 (ER]) - AEEZ 1.

EHHAMREANMFELEHENE

EBRMER -
E2]D

1.81ET

Equity attributable to shareholders

of the Company
Non-controlling interests

FHR o IERT

—E——FNETHERBETIICHERE
BE-Z——FR-Z-2F+-A=+—
BIEFE 2 AR AR EEEEF D
LA 89T -

B hn 4975 ¥
RZTE——FR=F—

TET A=+ BNARBBREGERD B

IS E 14,8518 7T

2. REBR=F

LA#13.048T

—RE-_ALEHERERHERLHE 2.

iR EEKEE30BITEEF o

3. BHE-_T—=—%F -

—E 5k
A=+—RIFEZSRESRND
JC - BEE1.25 T kA E2.447T ¢

—ZF+= 3
ME&MLM
BE-T-TF

TZAZT-HEFEZERIRE X SRE

SEAFAEE1.25T ¢

4. BELEERAR

FOF

LAEREZRHILL D) o 4.

R=%B-—=F RF——F RZIFT-FTF
+=ZA=+—-B +=-A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2010
(&%) (&5
(Restated) (Restated)
BEHET BB EET BB EET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
40,742 37,839 32,123
13,042 12,633 10,475
53,784 50,472 42,598
1,330 - -
2.5% Net Cash Net Cash
FIRE FiRE
0.89 0.96 0.98
$16.97 $15.77 $13.40
As a result of the adoption of HKAS 12 (Amendments) , the Group

changed its accounting policy on deferred taxation related to investment
properties. This amendment has been applied retrospectively and
certain 2011 comparatives are restated accordingly. Profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 and
2010 have been increased by approximately HK$181 million and HK$189
million, respectively, and the equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 have been increased by
approximately HK$1,485 million and HK$ 1,304 million, respectively.

The Group disposed of its brand-fashion distribution business interest in
February 2010 with a net gain of approximately HK$3 billion.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2012, 2011
and 2010 are HK$1.64, HK$1.25 and HK$2.44, respectively. Diluted
earnings per share of the discontinued operations for the year ended 31
December 2010 are HK$1.25.

Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total
equity.
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ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA

BEEBCEXE HETE EWE WNR% DA
Turnover by segment Retail Beer Food Beverage
8% 4% 3% 63%

22% 66%

10%

24%

2012 2011
—E-=fF = i, i)
2012 2011 Increased/
BEEER BEESET (Decreased)
ESEE S SwdF <] Turnover by segment HK$ million HK$ million %
B2 Core Businesses
=5 Retail 83,506 70,088 19.1%
b Beer 28,064 26,689 52%
B Food 10,379 10,706 (3.1%)
o Beverage 4,766 3,112 53.1%
126,715 110,595 14.6%
¥ BREZRS Elimination of inter-segment
transactions (479) (431) 1.1%
FLEC] Total 126,236 110,164 14.6%

—

— -
- - —— g,
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EBITDA by Segment

NZTE EEE

Retail Beer

AR Rim
Food Beverage

7%

38%

3%

52%

3%
8%

42%

47%

2012 2011

=F—=F i #m CEd)
BIRFER Z KRG 2012 2011 Increased/
FE - HHE - ER BERET BEHET (Decreased)
WA BRR EBITDA' by segment HK$ million HK$ million %
B2 Core Businesses
TE Retail 5,228 3,953 32.3%
i Beer 3,824 3,497 9.4%
B Food 722 662 9.1%
R Beverage 263 243 8.2%

10,037 8,355 20.1%
NEIBEER Corporate overheads (116) (111) 45%
BTS2 HEE Total from core businesses 9,921 8,244 20.3%
HEHK Other Businesses
188 R H AR Investments and Others (1) (1) -
HiZE 2 E5E Total from other businesses 1) (M -
pabc] Total 9,920 8,243 20.3%
Fff3E Note:
1. EBITDARAFFE - BIH - T8 REHA AT - 1. EBITDA represents earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and
amortization.
- - T T T~ ~
N
~
~
~
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ANALYSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

@ _-_____——__)~
4’ \

EZE EEE EAR H&R |
A Retail Beer Food Beverage I
|
| 8% 2% 4% 62% I'
9%
! !
! !
| /
! 20% /
| , I/
70% %
| 25% /
| I
| 2012 2011 I
| I
| I
1 & —E——fF |
I 2012 2011 |
(&E7)) #hn, GRd) \
| (Restated) Increased/
| ®EgEE>BRE Profit attributable to BYEEHET BERET (Decreased) !
| EEER shareholders by segment HK$ million HK$ million % \
| BO#EHK Core Businesses \
I T Retail 2,871 1,917 49.8% \
LDy Beer 823 785 4.8% 1
I &% Food 331 278 19.1% |
I /e Beverage 86 126 (31.7%) I
| 4,111 3,106 32.4%
I NEBEF S FREN  Net corporate interest and I
=gz expenses (166) (93) 78.5% I
! bl Total 3,945 3,013 30.9% I
| /
! /
! 1
| I
I 1
I \
I \
] \
I \
\
/ ~
/ ~
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Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the effect of asset revaluation

NTE EEE NRER Rim

and major disposal of non-core assets/investments by segment Retail Beer Food Beverage
5% \ 31% 6% \ 41%
15% 13%
49% 40%
2012 2011
BIEERMBREE Profit attributable to
BEREEEER shareholders excluding —B——F —T——F #1,/ (GR)
EROEE the effect of asset revaluation 2012 2011 Increased/
REFEC and major disposal of non-core BEHET BEHETT (Decreased)
BERELER assets/investments by segment HK$ million HK$ million %
B2 Core Businesses
T Retail’ 525 808 (35.0%)
i Beer 823 785 4.8%
Bm? Food? 259 263 (1.5%)
T Beverage 86 126 (31.7%)
1,693 1,982 (14.6%)
NEEEN S FEER  Net corporate interest and
& expenses (166) (93) 78.5%
k) Total 1,527 1,889 (19.2%)
FffsE Notes:

1. TEEBNEETRIESEATNBE2346ET
(ZZ——4  BIE11.09ET) HHEIFZLEE
FTS R RIS E MM FEERR -

2. RREBHEETRELBAOER2ET
(ZZ——F : BEONSET) ML EIEROIRERT
BFEF RITEEMEFHERR

Net gain on disposal of non-core investments and valuation surplus
on investment properties with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$2,346 million (2011: HK$1,109 million) have been excluded from the
results of Retail division.

Net gain on disposal of non-core investments and valuation surplus on
investment properties with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$72
million (2011: HK$15 million) have been excluded from the results of the
Food division.
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AWARDS IN 2012
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YOUR SUPPORT
MOTIVATES US
TO EXCEL!

— A JAN

(TEBYAT The Mirror Monthly Magazine

R ETSRTE Outstanding Corporate Social Responsibility Award
=H MAR

(M EER RS Corporate Governance Asia Magazine

2026 EBNEBRAXGEE(TER)Z
DNEEEFATE REERER)
SMNREERTHE (REEBE)

Asian Excellence Recognition Awards 2012 (China):
Asia’s Best CEO (Investor Relations)
Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)

BEREEBEAR Best Investor Relations Professional

RIEREEWR Best Investor Relations

HERRARET Best Environmental Responsibility

HA MAY

(EXRBR)R(CERERB) MR Capital Magazine and Capital Weekly Magazine
2012FhEHEERMEARE Corporate Social Responsibility Awards 2012

MerComm, Inc.
2010F #RE Astrid Awards,Z 102 F #HAH 5 -
AR (EHRRET)

/<A JUN

MerComm, Inc.
Astrid Awards (for Annual Report 2010):
Corporate Annual Reports: Bronze (Traditional Format)

(B EE )R

2012F s NlE R ] EEEGAEZ
SEREEBERR(EH—EEER)
REEFEVHE (EHF—EBER)
SEREEBREAB(BEHIRESFEBER)
SEERBRTES _B(BH—HEBEER)
(EMEEER)EE

2012F EREDM R E(RE)

202F E M EES(RE)
CEARE)
FEHEEAPREEDCERMEZ
[BAREGLEERDE]

Institutional Investor Magazine

The All-Asia Executive Team Survey 2012:

Best IR Companies (Sell Side - Consumer)

Best CFO (Sell Side — Consumer)

Best Investor Relations Professional (Both Buy and Sell Side - Consumer)
Ranked 2nd for Best CEO (Sell Side — Consumer)

Corporate Governance Asia Magazine

Class of 2012 - The Best of Asia (China)

Asian Corporate Director 2012 (China)

Capital Magazine

“Outstanding Consumer Goods Enterprise Award” in the 7th
Capital Outstanding China Enterprise Awards
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MerComm, Inc.

201 EFSREIENBIR F AL 2 -
TE-BmAR - RE(EFRE)
TE—BmAR : WEENRI R HIE)

94 SEP

MerComm, Inc.

International Annual Report Competition Awards (For Annual Report 2011):
Retail — Supermarkets: Silver Award (Overall Annual Reports — Traditional Format)
Retail — Supermarkets: Bronze Award (Printing & Production)

DN E R
TRBAFATELERE PRTEDRIRLE

104 oCT

Retail Asia Publishing
"China’s Top Retailer Bronze Award" in Retail Asia Pacific Top 500 Awards

MerComm, Inc.
20114 ¥R 44 1£( Galaxy Awards | @ R B3 HE 2 R4 RR
b

118 NOV

MerComm, Inc.
“Silver Award" in the category of Food & Consumer Packaged Goods in the
Galaxy Awards Competition (For Annual Report 2011)

BREEZS

02FFEEHESE (EMARIBERSM—EEEHK
DB IEEE )

CEENE M)
PREGRE—TEMTEFATX)REEZ
RIEEBLEER

RECESRERERE

RERR S R A T8

REEEEREFEAME

The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

Directors of The Year Awards 2012 : Board Category for “Listed Companies (SEHK
—Hang Seng Index Constituents)”

Asiamoney Magazine

Corporate Governance Poll — Asia (Ex-Japan) & Hong Kong:

Overall Best Company for Corporate Governance

Best for Disclosure and Transparency

Best for Shareholders' Rights and Equitable Treatment

Best for Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

REREERE Best for Investor Relations
128 DEC

IR Magazine IR Magazine

IR Magazine 78,2 IR Magazine Awards:

HEREEMERCEBLRRBITE)
REREEBRR(BBLE)
BEREEMEAB(ER)

(Bt )3+
012FEMECHEERRIESE
(R —B )

2012FEEAGD EiE

Best in Sector — Consumer Goods & Services

Best Investor Relations by a Hong Kong Company

Best Investor Relations Officer (Hong Kong)

The Asset Magazine

The Asset Triple A Corporate Gold Award 2012 I
Economic Digest Magazine e

Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award 2012
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ENRICHING
CONSUMER
EXPERIENCE

We adopt hypermarkets as its
main retail format and to expand
its multi-format store network in

EBAXEERDA
CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

RHEF
EmiEE

BIVEBBEAPERIA LREHE -

AEMMEEEREE -

ADDING VALUETO
OUR PRODUCTS

We expand sales of mid-end and
above beers to add value to our
products.

L4 iy

L E M

HABHEEY EE % RS
B[RLEAFHEE - K=
ETZEMRMER °

WIN-WIN
PARTNERSHIP
FOR SYNERGIES

We will continue to look for
opportunities to team up with
other market leaders, especially

regions where the Group has already
established a presence, enriching our
customer's shopping experience.

for our retail and food divisions.
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FEARER  BETFERENEFIRIVEE |
We will prudently expand our business to capture opportunities
that will arise from long-term domestic demand in China!
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BT EIER KA ERFRRE B REENR SR - BIPERER B IHREERE
HiE20E T ARK R ZEEA A FERIRER © HUL T B R M PIER AR
BHRZES ° AL o
ENHANCING MINIMIZING CONTINUOUS
MANAGEMENT FINANCIAL RISK INVESTMENT
FLOW AND We maintain healthy cash flow IN STAFF
for f | :

0 PERATIONAL or future development We value continuous education
EFF'C'ENCY for our staff and frequently
e i h arrange trainings and workshops

up will invest more than for our colleagues.

RMB2 billion in our IT systems in
the coming 5-6 years.
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XEEBRYBREERERBRFRASTHNE
Z o FETHENRQERER -BEMSREN
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BE-_Z——H+-_A=+—BHILFE &«
SEMNGAEEETEY BB 126,236,000,000
T BEEREIEIN14.6% o AR T IRERENL
4R A %A A 3,945,000,0007T © EEFIEHN
309% - JIBREEEHRENHEEHEZFE
W AEERE-ZE-——F+-A=+—H
IEFENARRBRREEERES BFREF
FA19.2% ©

EXEHED M

(REFEEEER)

Turnover by geographical region
(from continuing operations)

Final Results

In 2012, the global economy faced many headwinds with the
ongoing European debt crisis, the imminent U.S. fiscal cliff and the
looming currency war, which affected economic growth in China.
Despite the market volatility, the Group continued to evaluate the
market situation and to identify opportunities with its commitment
to developing its core businesses — retail, beer, food and beverage.
Through organic growth and acquisitions, the Group maintained
steady expansion and further strengthened its leading position in
the market. Our track record of sustainable business growth has
not only propelled us further towards our goal of becoming the
largest consumer goods company in China, but also laid a solid
foundation with which we will weather any uncertainties and grasp
opportunities when the economy rebounds.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately HK$126,236 million,
representing an increase of 14.6% year-on-year. Consolidated
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders amounted to
HK$3,945 million, representing an increase of 30.9% year-on-
year. Excluding the after-tax effect of asset revaluation and major
disposals, the Group’s underlying consolidated profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2012
would have decreased by 19.2%.
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Dividends

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.15 per share for
2012 (2011: HK$0.32 per share) payable on or around 14 June
2013 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 30 May 2013. Together with the
interim dividend of HK$0.15 per share, the total dividend for 2012
will amount to HK$0.30 per share (2011: HK$0.47 per share).

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 20 May 2013 to Friday, 24 May 2013, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
effected. In order to determine the identity of members who are
entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting to be
held on 24 May 2013, all share transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Share Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 16 May 2013 for registration.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the meeting, the
proposed final dividend will be payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company after the
close of business at 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 30 May 2013, and the
register of members of the Company will be closed on Thursday,
30 May 2013, during which no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen'’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
29 May 2013 for registration.

-
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Strategy Implementation

Building on a development strategy of national expansion that
emphasizes strong regional leadership and synergistic opportunities
between its businesses, the Group further enhanced its
competitiveness and achieved sustainable business growth during
the year under review. Leveraging its extensive retail network of
more than 4,400 stores in China, the retail division continued to
expand its national footprint to new markets and strengthened
its market dominance in existing markets. Furthermore, during
the year under review, the contribution from the newly acquired
Jiangxi Hongkelong Department Store Investment Company Limited
demonstrates the success of the Group’s acquisition strategy in
accelerating growth. Apart from network expansion, the Group
fostered cooperation with national mainland property developers
to bring in its multi-format stores to high quality shopping malls.
To further strengthen its competitive edge, the retail division will
continue to relocate experienced staff to new regions, enrich its
product mix and enhance the unique and sophisticated shopping
experience for its customers.

With a market share of approximately 22% in China, the Group's
beer sales volume reached approximately 10,639,000 kiloliters in
2012, and its flagship “Z1E Snow" brand beer continued to be
the best-selling single beer brand by volume in the China market.
Set against the increasingly competitive environment in China’s
beer industry, the beer division managed to boost beer sales and
strengthen its market share by stepping up its efforts in marketing
and promotions and enhancing its product mix in 2012. The Group
also continued to implement its acquisition strategy to secure its
leading position in the beer market. One important milestone was
the agreement to acquire the beer business of Kingway Brewery
Holdings Limited (“Kingway Brewery”) in February 2013. The
acquisition, which brings the Group well-received brand equity
and a strong market share in Southern China, will further enhance
its competitiveness in China’s beer industry and will propel the
expansion of its beer business.

As the largest supplier of Chinese foodstuffs in Hong Kong and one
of the leading integrated food suppliers in China, the Group’s food
division actively expanded its market presence in China leveraging
the reputation of its “F% Ng Fung” brand during the year under
review. Moreover, the division strategically disposed of its marine
fishing and aquatic products processing operation to focus resources
on its core businesses. Looking forward, the division will actively
identify opportunities to expand its revenue stream and focus on the
development of high potential businesses such as the sourcing and
distribution of certain food and agricultural products. Furthermore,
more growth potential is expected to be explored through the
synergy from the cooperation between the division's high growth
potential businesses and the Group's retail business.
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Thanks to its efforts in marketing and brand building and increased
sales in other provinces, the Group’s beverage division achieved
remarkable growth in both sales volume and turnover of its “1&&
C’estbon” purified water. During the year, the Group also expanded
sales of "B Kirin” beverage products through the distribution
channels of its packaged water operation. Looking ahead, the
beverage division will also continue to engage in research and
development on new products with the aim of tapping the robust
demand for more innovative beverage products for customers. Al
of these endeavors will lead the Group to accomplish its goal of
becoming a powerful contender in China’s non-alcoholic beverage
market.

In order to fuel sustainable growth, the Group is also devoted
to continuing education and talent development. For example,
the retail division has established a training institute to organize
systematic training sessions for its staff since 2010. During the year
under review, a total of more than 2,000,000 man-hours of trainings
were organized by the retail division. Apart from our headquarters
and business divisions organizing various training sessions and
workshops, we also actively participate in training courses organized
by China Resources University, our parent company’s training
institute. It was established to develop the management skills and
leadership of senior and middle management as well as to enhance
the competitiveness of the professional experts.

With the aim of enhancing its core competitiveness, management
flow and cost effectiveness, the Group has established a special
IT team comprising more than 30 professionals to develop its IT
system projects. The Group will invest more than RMB2 billion in
the coming 5-6 years to develop IT systems such as the Enterprise
Resource Planning (“ERP”) system and the Customer Relationship
Management (“CRM") system for the fast-moving consumer goods
("FMCG") industry, as well as other systems related to the retail and
FMCG industries.

Prospects

Looking forward to 2013, the global economic volatility is expected
to affect consumer sentiment and the short-term operating
environment in the retail industry. However, we are optimistic
about the long-term development of China’s retail market as the
central government'’s new urbanization strategies promulgated in
its “18th National Congress” will promote domestic consumption.
With our strong financial position and healthy cash flow, we are
more focused than ever to weather the uncertainties ahead and to
prudently expand our business to capture the opportunities that will
arise.

____——--.
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Moreover, we will carry on in looking for opportunities to team
up with other market leaders where circumstances allow to create
synergies, especially for our retail and food divisions. We have a
good track record of partnering with SABMiller plc, one of the
world’s largest beer companies, to develop the beer market in China.
In 2011, we formed a joint venture with Japan’s leading beverage
company — Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (“Kirin Holdings") — to
ride on our beverage division’s extensive distribution capabilities in
China and the excellent product development capabilities of Kirin
Holdings. We are confident that the win-win strategy to cooperate
with other leading companies and international players will enable us
to sharpen our competitive edge and accelerate our development in
China’s consumer market.

In the future, our mission remains the same — to become the
largest consumer goods company in China. We will adhere to
our commitment to market share development for each of our
consumer goods businesses while leveraging our economies of
scale to enhance operational efficiency and generate higher value
over the longer term. We will continue to observe the economic
environment as we pursue sustainable growth with disciplined
management of costs and risks, and will keep a firm grip on liquidity
and financial efficiency. We will also strive to maintain high standard
of corporate governance, aiming to win numerous related awards
and accreditations continuously.

Appreciation

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to our valued shareholders,
customers and business associates for their trust and unwavering
support. | would also like to thank our management and staff for
their professionalism and dedication. We endeavor to bring quality
lifestyle to our customers through our wholehearted commitment
and hard work.

Chen Lang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to upholding the highest standard of
corporate governance and maintaining effective communications
with its shareholders and the investment community. To this end,
the Group maintains open-dialogue with investors and analysts to
ensure transparent and the timely and accurate dissemination of
information, including operating performance and major corporate
developments.

To maintain a high level of transparency, the Group has long
taken the initiative to produce quarterly financial and operational
reviews on a voluntary basis and has arranged regular analyst
meetings for the Group's business strategies and performance. In
2012, the Group organized more than 350 meetings with around
1,600 analysts and fund managers. The Group also conducted
global roadshows in 2012 in which our senior management met
institutional investors in the United States and Asia, presenting to
them updates on our business expansion. In May 2012, the Group
also organized a two-day site visit to its operations in Guangdong
and Shenzhen, during which approximately 80 investors experienced
the Group’s multi-format retail platform at a high-end shopping
mall, a logistics center and its beer distribution channel.
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Year-end closing price and market capitalization of
the Company for 2008-2012

The Group’s continuous efforts in maintaining effective
communication have been well-received by the investment
community. In 2012, the Group received a number of awards in
the “Corporate Governance Poll 2012" conducted by Asiamoney
magazine, including “Overall Best Company for Corporate
Governance”, “Best for Disclosure and Transparency”, “Best
for Shareholders’ Rights and Equitable Treatment”, “Best for
Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors” and
“Best for Investor Relations”. The Group also won awards of the
Best IR Companies, CFO and Investor Relations Professional from
Institutional Investor magazine, and awards of “Best in Sector —
Consumer Goods & Services”, “Best Investor Relations by a Hong
Kong Company” and “Best Investor Relations Officer (Hong Kong)”
from IR Magazine. The Board of Directors also received an award
from The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. These accolades give
the Group a strong impetus to further enhance its investor relations
work.

AARHZBENE=
BEREFRERRKRE
Earnings and dividend per share
of the Company for 2008-2012
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Share Performance

The Company’s share price rose by 4.9% to HK$27.95 in 2012,
demonstrating market confidence in our business performance and
prospects. Our daily closing price hit a 12-month high of HK$30.65
on 15 March 2012. In line with the increase in the Company’s share
price, as at 31 December 2012, our market capitalization rose 5.0%
to HK$67,122 million.

Dividend Payout Ratio

The Group is dedicated to creating and maximizing corporate value
to reward its shareholders for their long-term support. In 2012, the
dividend payout ratio was 47%. We strive to adhere to a respectable
dividend payout ratio that balances the cash generated from our
earnings and to set aside an appropriate level of cash to drive our
sustainable growth in the future.

Basic cash dividend payout ratio" of the Company for 2008-2012
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A PR ESRALE Total Shareholder Return
1 REFBE-_T—_FRAFEERERMER By continuing to communicate with the investment community to
I SHBAEITER - HREFEREREB®R  discuss the Group's latest developments in 2012, the Company’s
Bt ET > RRIEFEEMIESHAE&FERTR  shares achieved a total return of 6.9% during the year, as measured
| B6.9% o ARNFEBEREMFELRLZE T~ by share price appreciation and the reinvested dividend. The
| %8.4% - BB RIEATEYEEEHME  Company’s total shareholder return over the past five years declined
l MABREMIE - by 8.4%, slightly behind the Hang Seng Index and the Hang Seng
\ Commerce & Industry Index.
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The Group’s retail division recorded turnover of HK$83,506 million and
attributable profit of HK$2,871 million in 2012, representing increases of
19.1% and 49.8% respectively as compared to that of 2011. Excluding the
after-tax revaluation surplus and the disposal of the non-core assets, the
division’s attributable profit in 2012 would have decreased by 35.0% when
compared to 2011.

The Group’s retail division mainly comprises supermarkets, “/F 2 Chinese
Arts & Crafts” stores, “22)F% CR Care” stores, “Si)& VIVO” health and
beauty stores and “AFEMIBE Pacific Coffee” shops. As at the end
of 2012, the Group operated more than 4,400 stores in China, of which
approximately 81% were self-operated while the rest were franchised.

During the year under review, sluggish recovery of global economy and
persistent Euro debt crisis have affected China’s export trade and slowed
down the economic growth in China. The home purchase restrictions
imposed by the central government and the lackluster performance of
China’s stock markets have resulted in contraction of wealth effect and
slower overall retail sales growth. Benefiting from the rising prices of

BEZFTEEBEEN
Turnover of retail division over
the last three years

M EEIT HKS million

2012
2011

2010

—E— —E——%F

2012 2011
(&%) #hn/CRD)
(Restated) Increased/
SEER BEEERT BEESHT (Decreased)
Retail division HK$ million HK$ million %
e+ Turnover 83,506 70,088 19.1%
e F Attributable profit 2,871 1,917 49.8%
RETFE - BiE - ITEREHRIAT]  EBITDA 5,228 3,953 32.3%
EARRY MFWEEIEE Capital expenditure and new acquisitions 9,686 4,034 140.1%
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BE41% TEFERAYELF-HEHE  consumer goods, same store sales of the Group’s retail division grew by
ETEBREREEMAMPFIE - ARWE  4.1% year-on-year. The sales growth was mainly attributable to new store
TR EREE SR EBRABIF®ARA  openings and the contribution of the newly acquired Jiangxi Hongkelong
= Department Store Investment Company Limited.

EHEHAREKIEERE THKABEEL  The increases in minimum wage levels across various regions leading to
Fro A RFHAMAE®ERBES S A higher labor costs, accompanied by the incubation period required for the
EENTEEBATNEENEKE A newly-opened stores, have exerted pressure on the division’s profitability.
I REBBEHREEREEIE S SEZE  Accordingly, the division carried out various initiatives to control operating
WA 2R BIERBEAEZIT/LEER  costs, such as enhancing bargaining power over leases and sharing sales
R IRAESEAHOEMBe - £ and marketing resources by leveraging synergies arising from its multi-

BT RS FEIE D 2 A
Geographical turnover breakdown of supermarket operation
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s retail network as at 31 December 2012
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format business, establishing an energy management system to promote
energy savings at its retail stores, as well as improving its labor structure and
hiring system. In addition, the division has partnered with a national supplier
to organize a summer camp for interns which allowed participants to share
their knowledge in retail business and experience in operation. This has
created a new co-operative model between retailers and suppliers that is set
to enhance the quality of human resources in China’s retail industry.

To further enhance its market share, the division continued to establish
coverage in new regions and to review its product mix and operational
strategy. During the year under review, the Group’s supermarket business
expanded into new markets such as Sichuan, Fujian and Hainan and opened
a number of convenience stores at metro stations in Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province to broaden the customer base. By fostering strategic cooperation
with national property developers, the division also managed to establish
presence in multiple formats at various high-quality commercial properties.
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China’s “18th National Congress” put significant emphasis on promoting
urbanization while the Central Economic Work Conference also separately
identified urbanization as one of its main goals for the first time. The launch
of new urbanization strategies will stimulate domestic consumption and give
impetus for future economic growth in China, and will thereby facilitate the
long term development of China’s retail industry.

Looking ahead, hypermarkets will remain the main retail format of the
Group’s retail division. The division will continue to develop in regions in
which the Group has dominant market share and to increase its market share
by rapidly expanding its multi-format business platform. The Group will also
replicate its successful multi-format business model to other regions in China
by establishing more retail stores in core cities and accelerating its expansion
into third-to-fourth tier cities, as well as into counties, towns and villages.
The division will continue to establish direct trading bases between farmers
and supermarkets, food safety model shops and environmental protection
and energy saving model shops. Moreover, the division will accelerate the
renovation and brand transition of the newly-acquired stores with the aim
of providing a better shopping experience to customers and improving store
image.
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The Group’s beer division reported turnover and attributable profit of
HK$28,064 million and HK$823 million, respectively in 2012, representing
year-on-year increases of 5.2% and 4.8%.

The Group’s beer division continued to enhance its production capacity
through the construction and acquisition of breweries as well as the
reconfiguration and expansion of its existing breweries, while also
implementing effective promotions and strengthening the establishment and
management of its distribution channels with the aim of boosting beer sales.
However, frequent occurrences of severe weather conditions during the
year, including nationwide torrential rain and continuous low temperatures,
have affected overall growth in volume in the beer market. As some of the
division’s leading markets are located in regions affected by severe weather
conditions, the overall sales volume growth and average selling prices of the
beer division were affected during the year under review. The Group’s total
beer sales volume in 2012 increased by 4% year-on-year to approximately
10,639,000 kiloliters, of which sales volume of the Group’s national “=5
7E Snow” brand increased by 5% year-on-year to approximately 9,667,000
kiloliters, accounting for more than 90% of the Group’s total beer sales
volume.

During the year under review, the division’s overall operating costs, including
primary and secondary raw material costs, generally increased. By leveraging
its economies of scale and centralized procurement, the Group’s beer
division further enhanced its production and energy efficiency so as to relieve

BE=ZF[E Snow | BB E

Sales volume of “Z1¢ Snow” beer over
the last three years

‘000FF+ ‘000 kiloliters

2012 2012
2011 2011
2010 2010
—E——F —T—F
2012 2011
(&%) #m/CED)
(Restated) Increased/
e ST S 75 BYEEERT BEEET (Decreased)
Beer division HKS$ million HK$ million %
EXE Turnover 28,064 26,689 52%
FEAG & F Attributable profit 823 785 4.8%
RETFIS - BIE - T8 KB HATRT  EBITDA 3,824 3,497 9.4%
BARFAY M iEE R Capital expenditure and new acquisitions 3,859 5,083 24.1%)
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cost pressures. Furthermore, the division has stepped up its marketing and
promotional efforts in response to the intensifying market competition, which
in turn hindered growth in operating profit. As such, the division continued to
enhance its product mix in order to enhance overall profitability.

The division’s newly-built and acquired breweries in Henan, Shanxi and
Zhejiang commenced operation during the year under review. As at the
end of 2012, the Group operated more than 80 breweries in China with an
aggregate annual production capacity of approximately 18,000,000 kiloliters.

R-T——F+ A=+ AAEERERAHE S
Geographical distribution of the Group's breweries as at 31 December 2012

©® E#T Heilongjiang 5 © I& Jiangsu 5 @ B  Hunan 1
A = il 3 @ 1§  Shanghai 2 ® &M  Guizhou 2
® E=  Liaoning 13 @ ZE Anhui 9 @® Wl  Sichuan 12
O b7 Beiing 1 @ A Henan 4 @D AR Tibet 1
® X Tianjin 1 @ #dc  Hubei 5 @ H#E  Gansu 1
0@ it Hebei 2 @ WL Zhejiang 6 @ AXE  Inner Mongolia 4
@ LA Shanxi 3 ®1@Z  Fujian 1 S

© 1#  shandong 3 @ ER  Guangdong 1 %Eﬁ'iﬁ(er of breweries: 85
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In addition, the Group’s beer division has entered into an agreement in
February 2013 to acquire the business of Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited
(“Kingway Brewery”) in relation to its beer production, distribution and
sales businesses for a total consideration of RMB5.38 billion. The assets
involved include seven breweries in Chengdu, Dongguan, Foshan, Shantou
Tianjin, Xian and Shenzhen Plant 2 with a combined production capacity of
1.45 million tonnes. With the good brand reputation of Kingway Brewery
in China, especially in Guangdong Province, as well as its strong market
share, extensive sales network and established manufacturing facilities, the
acquisition will not only strengthen the division’s production capacity and
economies of scale, but also further optimize the sales network of the Group
in China and continue to enhance the Group’s leading position in China’s
beer industry.
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Looking ahead, the Group’s beer division will continue to carry out marketing
campaigns for the “Z1E Snow” brand in order to strengthen the brand’s
reputation and customer loyalty. The division will reinforce the promotion
of its premium beer to optimize its product mix, strengthen its centralized
procurement system and enhance its production efficiency. At the same time,
the division will continue to seek and evaluate investment opportunities in a
prudent manner while pursuing organic growth so as to expand its market
share and to consolidate its leading market position.
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Turnover of food division
over the last three years
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The Group's food division reported turnover of HK$10,379 million and
attributable profit of HK$331 million in 2012, representing a decrease of 3.1%
and an increase of 19.1% year-on-year, respectively. Excluding the after-
tax revaluation surplus and the deemed gain on the disposal of non-core
investments, the division’s attributable profit would have decreased by 1.5%
year-on-year in 2012.

With respect to the division’s meat operation in China, the fall in domestic
pork prices has stimulated pork consumption. Benefitting from the
decreasing procurement costs of live pigs, the vigorous expansion of the
division’s carved meat business and the increase of its specialized meat
retail stores in various cities, the operation recorded satisfactory growth in
gross profit.

The division’s assorted foodstuff operation in China was affected by sluggish
domestic consumption and unfavorable weather conditions. However, the
operation maintained its operational advantages by modifying its product
mix and expanding into new markets. In addition, leveraging the sales
network and brand reputation of a newly-acquired rice distribution business
in Shenzhen, the division consolidated its operational team and focused on
the expansion of the downstream business of rice distribution. The operation
is committed to enhancing the reputation of “FL 2 Ng Fung” branded rice
products of good quality and expanding the sales platform nationwide.

2012
2011
2010
—E-—F —E——5F
2012 2011
(Z%) #&hn/CR2)
(Restated) Increased/
BmER BEEERT BEEBESBL  (Decreased)
Food division HK$ million HK$ million %
SRR Turnover 10,379 10,706 (3.1%)
P R Attributable profit 331 278 19.1%
RetFIE - B8 - TEREHAIZAF  EBITDA 722 662 9.1%
EARSY MFTWEEER Capital expenditure and new acquisitions 495 744 (33.5%)
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With respect to the division’s operation in Hong Kong, the frozen food
distribution operation was affected by excess market supply and low selling
prices, which resulted in lower turnover for the operation. By consolidating
its sales channels and reinforcing the communications with customers,
the operation proactively responded to the frozen product market, which
remained sluggish, and gradually stabilizing the profitability. The profitability
of the livestock raising business was affected by plummeting live pig prices
as compared to last year and rising feed prices. The division has adopted
measures that include strengthening management of the livestock raising
business and enhancing feed production technology to alleviate the impacts
of the fall in prices and the increasing costs

The profitability of the marine fishing and aquatic product processing
operation was affected by rising diesel prices and labor costs. In line with the
division’s development strategy of focusing resources on core businesses,
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ERERBEZLER REKNER  the marine fishing and aquatic products processing operation was disposed
EHETERFBERKERINIER- during the year.

RERK NEEBERREBBEEEET  Looking ahead, the Group’s food division will continue to focus on the
W% TEHIRABRAEBEEUNE domestic market and will enhance the operational efficiency of its existing
TEIG A RN BB E NgFung) &  businesses to accommodate its development strategy. Through the
MEEHE FHHRI TSR ED- promotion and marketing of the “F1 & Ng Fung” brand, expansion into
E—PRABANEBRERMBF LT - new markets and mergers and acquisitions activities, the Group will further
enhance the scale of the division’s business in China and its profitability.

R ¥EBE S EME D2 A
Geographical turnover breakdown of food operation

RIB——H+ - A=+ —BAREERREMHMR S
Geographical distribution of the Group's food supply bases as at 31 December 2012
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The Group’s beverage division reported turnover of HK$4,766 million and
attributable profit of HK$86 million in 2012, representing an increase of
53.1% and a decrease of 31.7% year-on-year, respectively. The decrease
in attributable profit was mainly the result of the accelerated marketing
promotions for “BE % Kirin” beverage products as well as diluted earnings
contribution from the formation of a joint venture with Kirin Holdings
Company, Limited in mid-August 2011.

Thanks to the remarkable growth in sales volume of “/4E C’estbon”
purified water, as well as the active promotion of beverage products, total
sales volume of the division in 2012 increased by 33% year-on-year to
approximately 3,507,000 kiloliters. The purified water operation reported
a marked increase in both sales volume and turnover in Guangdong,
Hunan, Sichuan, Jiangsu, Guangxi and Fujian, and has further consolidated
its market leading position in Southern China. The sales of “EHf# Kirin”
products has penetrated smoothly through the distribution channels of the
packaged water operation in areas such as Guangdong, Hunan and Sichuan,
and the profitability has been enhanced by expanding its sales network and
distribution channel to boost its market coverage. During the year under
review, the drop in the prices of primary and secondary raw materials,
including packaging materials and sugar, has alleviated the pressure from
rising operating costs. The division has stepped up its marketing and

BE=FHMEBLHE

Sales volume of beverage division
over the last three years

'000F 7 '000 kiloliters

2012
2011
2010
—E-=F B4
2012 2011
(&%) &/ 0EL)
(Restated) Increased/
ATES BEEET BEEBT  (Decreased)
Beverage division HKS$ million HK$ million %
e Turnover 4,766 3,112 53.1%
e T Attributable profit 86 126 31.7%)
RETFILE - BE - ITERBHAAT  EBITDA 263 243 8.2%
BARRY MFWEER Capital expenditure and new acquisitions 70 379 (81.5%)
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promotional efforts while optimizing its beverage product mix to sharpen its
market competitive edge and enhance brand awareness and recognition.

Looking ahead, China’s beverage market shows considerable growth
potential in view of opportunities for innovative products as consumers
become increasingly health conscious. The Group’s beverage division will
continue to engage in research and development of new products so as to
optimize its product mix, and will implement strategic marketing plans to
enhance its brand image and market share.

REZB—ZF+ZA=+—BAEERREE RS H
Geographical distribution of the Group’s beverage plants as at 31 December 2012
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Capital and Funding

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s consolidated cash and bank
balance amounted to HK$16,396 million. The Group’s borrowings as
at 31 December 2012 were HK$17,726 million with HK$4,374 million
repayable within one year, HK$13,349 million repayable after one year
but within five years and HK$3 million repayable after five years.

On the basis of the Group’s net borrowings relative to the shareholders’
funds and minority interests, the Group’s gearing was approximately at
2.5% as at 31 December 2012.

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. As at 31
December 2012, 7.2% of the Group’s cash deposit balance was held in
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exposure, the Group entered into certain interest rate swaps to hedge
part of its borrowings.

As the majority of the Group’s assets, liabilities, revenue and payments
are denominated in functional currencies of the respective group entity,
the expected foreign currency exposure is minimal.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2012, assets with a carrying value of HK$391 million
(31 December 2011: HK$306 million) were pledged for bank borrowings
and notes payable.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2012.

Employees

As at 31 December 2012, the Group, excluding its associated companies,
had a staff size of around 211,000, amongst which about 98% were
employed in the Chinese Mainland, whilst the rest were mainly in Hong
Kong and overseas. Remuneration packages are assessed in accordance
with the nature of job duties, individual performance and market trends
with built-in merit components, paid in the form of cash bonuses.

By order of the Board
CHEN LANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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aged 47

was appointed as Chairman of the Board of the Company in August
2012. Mr. Chen was Chief Executive Officer (previously named as
Managing Director) of the Company from January 2009 to August
2012. He is Executive Director of the Company, Director and Vice
President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, and
Director of China Resources National Corporation as well as the
Chairman of China Resources Snow Breweries (China) Investment
Co., Ltd., China Resources Ng Fung Limited and China Resources
Kirin Beverage (Holdings) Company Limited. He was previously the
Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd., and
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Logic
Limited (now renamed as China Resources Gas Group Limited). Prior
to that, he was Chairman and General Manager of China Resources
Development and Investment Co., Limited and was in charge of a
number of substantial investments in Canada and Thailand of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor
of Economics degree from Anhui University, China and a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of San Francisco,
USA. He is currently the visiting professor of Anhui University, China
and also the part-time teacher of Master of International Business
of Fudan University, China. He joined China Resources National
Corporation and China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in
1986 and 1989 respectively.
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Mr. Hong Jie
BIHESEE
Mr. Liu Hongji

aged 45

was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
of the Company in August 2012. He was Vice President of the
Company from September 2009 to August 2012. Mr. Hong
has been Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard
Company Limited since June 2009. Mr. Hong was Chief Operating
Officer of China Resources Vanguard Company Limited between
June 2006 and May 2009 and prior to that, he had been its Chief
Financial Officer since April 2003. In addition, Mr. Hong is the
Vice Chairman of China Chain Store & Franchise Association since
November 2012. Mr. Hong holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics
from the Hangzhou University of Commerce (now known as
Zhejiang Gongshang University). Mr. Hong has extensive experience
in financial and corporate management. Mr. Hong joined China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1992 and was Assistant
General Manager of its Finance Department.

aged 52

was appointed as Vice Chairman of the Board and Executive
Director of the Company in August 2012. He was Vice President
of the Company from May 2011 to August 2012. Mr. Liu has
been Managing Director of China Resources C'estbon Food &
Beverage (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (previously named as C’estbon
Food & Beverage (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. / Shenzhen C’estbon Food
and Drink Company Limited) since January 1997. Mr. Liu was
Marketing Director of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited
between September 2000 and January 2003. Mr. Liu had also held
key positions in two Shenzhen based enterprises. Mr. Liu majored
in Industrial Economics at the People’s University of China. He has
extensive experience in marketing and corporate management of
fast moving consumer goods especially beverages. Mr. Liu joined
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in March 1996.
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BOLHEF
Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank

5. MXR&AE
Mr. Du Wenmin 4
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aged 51

has been an Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company since June 2009 and Company Secretary since August
2009. Mr. Lai was previously the Executive Director, Non-Executive
Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of China
Resources Microelectronics Limited. Prior to that, he served as
the Chief Financial Officer of Eagle Brand Holdings Ltd., which is
a company listed in Singapore and before then, he served as the
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Logic International
Holdings Ltd. (now known as China Resources Gas Group Limited).
Mr. Lai has a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University
of Western Australia and a graduate diploma in Business and
Administration from the Curtin University of Technology of Western
Australia. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountant and a fellow member of CPA Australia. Mr. Lai
joined the Company in 2009.
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aged 49

was appointed Director of the Company in September 2007. He
is the Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. He is also a Non-Executive
Director of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited,
China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited, China Resources Gas Group Limited and China Resources
Microelectronics Limited (its listing position was withdrawn on 2
November 2011), and Director of China Resources Sanjiu Medical
& Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and China Resources Double-crane
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. He was previously the Managing Director
of China Resources Construction (Holdings) Limited and the Chief
Audit Executive of the Internal Audit and Supervision Department
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. Mr. Du obtained a
Master’s Degree in Business and Administration from the University
of San Francisco, USA. He joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1985.
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Eli e
Mr. Yan Biao

7. BUOBRKHE
Mr. Wei Bin

aged 51

was appointed Executive Director of the Company in December
1994 and Non-Executive Director in March 2006. Mr. Yan is a
Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources National Corporation and is the Director of Legal Affairs
of the China Resources Group. He is also a Non-Executive Director of
China Resources Land Limited and a supervisor of China Resources
Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Mr. Yan has a Bachelor of
Laws degree from the Peking University, China and an MBA degree
from the University of San Francisco, USA.

aged 43

was appointed Director of the Company in November 2010. He
has been appointed the Chief Financial Officer of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited with effect from 1 April 2011 and is
the General Manager of its Finance Department. He is also a Non-
Executive Director of China Resources Gas Group Limited, China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited, China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Microelectronics
Limited and China Resources Land Limited, which are companies
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange except
China Resources Microelectronics Limited whose listing position
was withdrawn on 2 November 2011. He is also a Director of China
Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Shan Dong
Dong-E E-Jiao Co., Ltd and China Vanke Co., Ltd., which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and China Resources Double-
crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which is listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wei holds a Bachelor’s degree in Auditing from
Zhongnan University of Economics in China and a Master's degree
in Finance from Jinan University in China, and is a Senior Accountant
and a Senior Auditor in China. He is also a non-practicing member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wei
joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 2001.
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aged 58

was appointed Director of the Company in May 2012. He is the
Audit Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.
He has been a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (a listed company on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) since May 2012 and has been a Non-Executive Director of
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, China Resources
Land Limited and China Resources Gas Group Limited (all three
companies are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) since June
2012. Mr. Huang graduated from the Renmin University of China
in 1987 and specialized in finance. He obtained a Master's degree
of Regional Economics from the Central China Normal University in
1996. He is a Certified Public Accountant and a Senior Auditor in
the People’s Republic of China. He joined the National Audit Office
of the PRC (“CNAQ") in 2000 and was the Commissioner of the
Wuhan Resident Office and Guangzhou Resident Office of CNAO,
and Director of the Department of Agriculture, Resources and
Environmental Protection Audit of CNAO. Mr. Huang joined China
Resources Group in 2011.

aged 42
was appointed Director of the Company in May 2012. He is the
General Manager of Strategy Management Department of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited since October 2011. Mr.
Chen is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited, China Resources Land Limited and China Resources Gas
Group Limited, which are listed on the main board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. He is also a Director of China Resources
Double-crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which is listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, and China Resources Sanjiu Medical &
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and China Vanke Co., Ltd., which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen obtained a Bachelor's
degree of Architectural Management from the Tsinghua University,
China in 1993 and a Master's degree of Business Administration
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. BAELE
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

1. ZREHEL
11 Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

from University of Oxford, the United Kingdom, in 2007. Mr.
Chen joined China Resources Group in 1993 and has worked as
Project Engineer, Project Manager and Manager of Procurement
Department and Executive Director of China Resources Construction
(Holdings) Company Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company,
from September 1993 to March 2002. He was also the Director
and President of China Resources Land (Beijing) Limited from
March 2002 to October 2011 and a Director of China Resources
Land Limited from March 2003 to February 2006, both are fellow
subsidiaries of the Company and the latter is listed on the main
board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

B IEH1TEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
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aged 59
has been a Director of the Company since 1988. He is also a Director
of Forcon Investments Limited, Sino Petrochem Development Limited
and China & Overseas Resources Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his
Bachelor of Business Studies degree from the Polytechnic of North
Staffordshire, United Kingdom.

FCPA(Practising), GBS, OBE, JP,
aged 59
has been a Director of the Company since March 2003. He is
Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants
(Practising), member of the Twelfth National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and former
member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR. Dr. Li
holds directorships in a number of listed companies including Sun
Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International
Holdings Limited, Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited,
RoadShow Holdings Limited and Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
Dr. Li was a Director of Meadville Holdings Limited.
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12, MERHL
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi

13. BREBEE
Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan 12
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GBS, OBE, JP, aged 63

has been a Director of the Company since November 2005. Dr.
Cheng is a practising solicitor and the senior partner of Messrs. P.C.
Woo & Co. Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative Council
of Hong Kong. He is the founder chairman of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and
Chairman Emeritus. Dr. Cheng currently holds directorships in K.
Wah International Holdings Limited, China Mobile Limited, Hong
Kong Television Network Limited (formerly known as City Telecom
(H.K.) Limited), Towngas China Company Limited, Kader Holdings
Company Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Guangdong
Investment Limited and Tian An China Investments Company
Limited, all being public listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also
an Independent Non-Executive Director of ARA Asset Management
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on Singapore Exchange
Limited. His other directorships in public listed companies in the last
3 years include Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
China COSCO Holdings Company Limited, both being public listed
companies in Hong Kong, and ARA Asset Management (Fortune)
Limited (formerly known as ARA Asset Management (Singapore)
Limited), which manages Fortune Real Estate Investment Trust, a real
estate investment trust listed on Singapore Exchange Limited.

GBS, JP, aged 48

has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He is the
Executive Director and President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited
and Asia Insurance Company Limited. He also acts as an Advisor
of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch.
Apart from the roles in the business community, Mr. Chan also
serves as a Hong Kong Deputy to The National People’s Congress
of the People’s Republic of China and a member of the Executive
Council of the Hong Kong SAR. He is also a former member of the
Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR. In addition, Mr. Chan
holds directorship in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong,
including Chen Hsong Holdings Limited, City e-Solutions Limited,
New Heritage Holdings Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited. Mr.
Chan was a Director of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited.
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14. BAEESE
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

GBS, CBE, JP, aged 67

has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He
had been a career civil servant for over 36 years before retiring
from the civil service in 2002. Mr. Siu rose to the rank of Secretary,
Government Secretariat in 1993 and served a number of high-
ranking government positions, namely the Secretary for Economic
Services, Secretary for Transport, Head of Central Policy Unit and
eventually retired from his last posting as Secretary for Planning,
Environment & Lands. Mr. Siu now serves as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Transport International Holdings Limited and
two of its subsidiaries and Television Broadcasts Limited.
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aged 56

has been appointed as Vice President of the Company since
November 2010. He was an Executive Director of the Company
from January 2000 to November 2010, and Deputy Managing
Director from March 2006 to November 2010. Mr. Wang is a
Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources National Corporation. He is also an Executive Director
of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited and is responsible for
the entire operation of the Company’s beer operation. Mr. Wang
has a Bachelor of Finance degree from the People’s University of
China. He has previously worked in the China National Economic
Committee and held key management positions in a Shenzhen
based conglomerate. Mr. Wang joined China Resources National
Corporation and China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in
1994,

aged 47

was appointed Vice President of the Company in May 2011. He
has been the Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Ng Fung
Limited since 2011. Mr. Wang joined China Resources National
Corporation in 1988. He was previously the Senior Vice President of
China Resources Retail (Group) Company Limited. Mr. Wang holds a
Bachelor of Science degree and a Bachelor’s degree in Management
Science from the University of Science and Technology of China, as
well as a Master’s degree in Engineering from Tsinghua University.
He has extensive experience in strategic planning and corporate
management.
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CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT

Management Philosophy

The Board believes that risk management is an integral part
of corporate governance. Effective and efficient corporate risk
management will facilitate the Group’s business development and
operation by setting the appropriate risk appetite, maintaining an
optimal risk level and more importantly, proactively responding to
risks. It therefore helps protect shareholder value and safeguard
the Group's reputation. Through putting in place proper risk
management control over key businesses and carrying out regular
reviews and updates, the Group strives to reduce the likelihood
and the effect of risks before they occur, and deal with problems
effectively when they arise.

While the Group’s risk management is the responsibility of every
management team member and is embedded in the daily operation
of every business unit, our risk management process is based on
a decentralized model with a centralized monitoring system. The
Group's strategy is to maintain a streamlined risk management
process to identify, analyze and mitigate various risks in an efficient
and effective manner.

TERBEERRF Corporate Risk Management Process
EEg Board of Directors
R B B 5T Risk monitoring
EHA R SR E I s Reporting on regular and ad hoc basis
XBEBEN Business Units
HF—H: g% Step 1: Step 2:
Bl E B DA E Risk Identification Risk Analysis &
AR R R Mitigation
) 4 @
~
~
~ -
~ - _ - -—
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Step One - Risk Identification

We identify and assess risks both at group and individual business
unit levels, and incorporate risk management into our business
planning. At the end of each year, each business unit undertakes a
review of potential risks which fall within their respective business
and operation area. The business unit then performs risk reviews
including risk mapping and evaluation of their probability of
occurrence and impact. Identified risks are reported together with
the explanation of its nature and proposed risk management
strategies to the Group during the business plan review session
at the beginning of each year. In addition to the annual exercise,
our regular reporting system of each business unit also facilitates
ongoing risk identification and the reporting of risks.

Step Two — Risk Analysis and Mitigation

When risks are identified, the assigned risk owner is responsible for
analyzing the probability of their occurrence and potential impact.
Priority will be given to risks with high probability and negative
impact. The risk owner then designs appropriate procedures and
actions for risk mitigation and acts accordingly. Implementation cost
is also taken into account when devising the action plan. During
the implementation, we also emphasize the balance of risks and
benefits to ensure long-term business success.

Step Three - Risk Monitoring and Performance Evaluation
After risk identification, analysis and mitigation, evaluation
reports are submitted to the Group through the regular reporting
mechanism. To prevent the same risks from occurring again,
preventive actions and procedures to improve operational efficiency
are also incorporated into the internal control system. In addition,
our internal audit department undertakes independent reviews
on internal control system, and our management is responsible
for ensuring appropriate actions are taken to rectify any control
deficiencies highlighted in the audit reports within a reasonable
period of time.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a leading consumer goods company in China, we endeavor
to embrace the principles of corporate social responsibility and
sustainable development into our business operations and to take
full advantage of the Group’s business network and abundant
resources to make contributions to the economy, community and
environment.

We extend our concern for the community and help the
underprivileged; we protect the environment and treasure the
world’s natural resources; we place strong emphasis on innovation
and the quality of our service in order to establish and maintain the
trust of our customers. Our staff and the Group endeavor to live
up to our motto of “Better Life Together” with a view to creating
a better future for the community while delivering better returns to
our shareholders.

Community Care

The Group is committed to giving back to the community in which
it operates. To help those in need, all of the Group’s business
segments actively initiate different charitable activities and support
the relevant events organized by local governments in China.
Capitalizing on the competitive strengths of the Group, and with
an outpouring of volunteerism among our staff and customers, the
Group is at the forefront of creating a better society.

Community Services

In 2012, different segments of the Group launched an array
of community activities including visits to homes of the elderly,
organizing children’s activities and hosting charity events for the
underprivileged. Besides encouraging customers to donate winter
clothing to the “Hope Primary School” last year, our “#E&E%X CR
Vanguard” supermarket chain also joined hands with TV stations
and hospitals to organize community activities to encourage the
general public to love their parents and to pay attention to health
problems among the elderly. Staff of our supermarket operation in
the east China region took the initiative to organize monthly visits to
the homes of the elderly to show their care to senior citizens, while
"% CR Care” continued its long-standing practice of offering
50% discounts on its Chinese medical services to patrons aged over
65.
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The Group actively participated in poverty alleviation activities
in different regions of the country. The Group's “ZEH&EXR CR
Vanguard” stores in Hong Kong launched charity sales in which
a portion of merchandize sales were donated to “World Vision
China Partners” to fund their poverty alleviation projects in China.
Our supermarket operation in the east China region organized the
“Bottles in Exchange for Water” event in which all money raised
from the recycling of plastic bottles was donated to support the
construction of wells for children in parts of Guizhou Province where
water is scarce.

Furthermore, the Group continued to actively participate in the
“China Resources Hope Town" project, an initiative organized by
our parent company, in which our flagship food subsidiary China
Resources Ng Fung Limited (“CR Ng Fung”) capitalized on its
business advantages to assist in the development of the agricultural
industry in “China Resources Hope Towns”. Throughout the project,
“CR Ng Fung” implemented various ecological farming measures
and provided consumers “safe, nutritious, fresh and abundant” food
with the aim of improving the income levels and living standards of
local villagers. During the year under review, initiatives implemented
by “CR Ng Fung” included the launch of a 10,000 acre cherry
tomato plantation and a 1 million chicken farm in Baise, Guangxi
Province; a farm with 500,000 breeding hens in Xibaipo, Hebei
Province; and a Dongshan goat farm in Wanning, Hainan Province.
Moreover, “CR Ng Fung” has signed a strategic cooperation
agreement with the municipal government of Shaoshan, Hunan
Province to establish a modern agricultural plantation project in the
city.
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In March 2012, “CR Ng Fung”’s 10,000 acre
cherry tomato plantation project was officially
launched in the “China Resources Hope
Town" in Baise, Guangxi, China.
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Meanwhile, “ZEE&EZR CR Vanguard” capitalized on its extensive
retail network throughout the country to expand the sales channel
of the agricultural products produced by the “Hope Towns” in Baise
in Guangxi Province, Xibaipo in Hebei Province, Gutian in Fujian
Province and Wanning in Hainan Province in order to boost the
income levels of local villagers.

Our community work has earned us wide recognition in all sectors
of society. The Group’s supermarket chain was presented the
“Caring Company” logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
for over five consecutive years, while our "% CR Care” and ” X
SEEME Pacific Coffee” shops have each been named a “Caring
Company” by the same organization for four and two consecutive
years, respectively.

Education

Children and the youth are the future, and they are also the focus
of our community care activities. For instance, our “14% C'estbon”
beverage division initiated the “C’estbon 100 Libraries Program” in
2007 to build libraries in rural areas which lack educational resources
with the aim of enhancing the local children’s interest in reading
and improving their competitiveness for their future. As at the end
of 2012, "18E C'estbon” has established 73 libraries in rural areas
in China. To share the joy of reading with children in remote villages,
the program also promoted the “1 book + 1 bottle of water = 100
libraries” caring formula to encourage children in cities to donate
books. According to the caring formula, children can redeem a
bottle of “14% C'estbon” water for each book they donate.

BE-Z-—-FK [REAMEEETE ISR
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As at the end of 2012, the “C’estbon 100
Libraries Program” has established 73 libraries
in rural areas in China.
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In addition, the Group’s beer division spares no effort in its support
for educational services and has been organizing its flagship
“Great Expedition with SNOW" campaign for many years. It
launched the “Caring Tour” in Jiangsu Province in 2012, a tour
in which participants visited primary schools for the children of
migrant workers in Nanjing, Changzhou, Jiangyin, Suzhou and
Nantong. Consumers in these five cities were encouraged to donate
schoolbags and money with the aim of improving the learning
environments of underprivileged primary school students. "X
SEEDNLE Pacific Coffee” shops in Hong Kong also organized a
charity bazaar in which notebooks and calendars were sold to raise
funds for “Sowers Action” to support its education programs in
impoverished areas of China.

Cultural Conservation

The Group is committed to cultural conservation. Last year, our beer
division once again partnered with The School of Architecture of
Tsinghua University to organize the second five-year “Popularization
and inheritance — China’s Ancient Buildings Series” program. The
program was established to raise public awareness about the
current status of ancient buildings in China and traditional Chinese
culture, as well as to spread the knowledge on ancient buildings. To
this end, more than 20 cultural seminars will be held throughout the
country each year, and more than 200,000 sets of the “Five books
on China’s Ancient Capitals” will be donated to libraries, universities
and media organizations.
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The management of our beer division took
photos with the judges, guests and winners of
the “SNOW Draft Beer — Photo Competition
on Chinese Ancient Buildings”.
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The Group’s beer division has also been organizing the “SNOW
Draft Beer — Photo Competition on Chinese Ancient Buildings” since
2009, and the competition last year received overwhelming support
again with more than 170,000 fascinating photos submitted for
competition. During last year’s competition, our beer division
conducted dozens of outdoor photo taking activities that consisted
of daily reviews from veteran professionals and photography
seminars, enabling participants to experience the subtlety of Chinese
ancient buildings and the charm of Chinese culture. Coupled with
the leading documentary program “Ancient Chinese Buildings”
on CCTV, which required 3 years of production, the overall project
received wide recognition and has been successful in raising public
concern about the conservation of China’s ancient buildings.

Environmental Protection

The Group considers environmental protection to be an integral
element of its corporate culture and decision-making process. We
take all accountable and practicable measures to minimize the
impacts that our business operations may have on the environment.
Rigorous targets were set for all of our business units in order to
reduce the consumption of energy, water and paper. In addition,
the Group also actively advocates environmental consciousness with
the commitment to promoting the concept of green living.

[#EMER CR Vanguard iEHE S F 2 IMRETH
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"#HE R CR Vanguard” has endeavored to
donate algae-eating fishes to help clean up
. the Taihu Lake in Jiangsu for many years.
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Energy Conservation and Waste Reduction

In 2012, the Group installed various eco-friendly facilities as it
opened new "“# &3 CR Vanguard” stores or renovated existing
ones. Such facilities included environmentally-friendly light bulbs and
energy-saving cooling systems to reduce electricity consumption,
as well as installing soundproof devices to reduce sound pollution.
The Group's beer division has formulated internal control standards
which are much stricter than those set by the government in order
to optimize its procedures for energy savings and waste reduction.
The division continued to introduce new technologies and invested
over RMB35 million to implement more than 60 relevant projects
in energy conservation and waste reduction during the year. At
present, the Group’s beer division enjoys a leading reputation
among its domestic peers in terms of achievements in energy
savings and waste reduction.

The Group's food division continued to carry out the technological
transformation and enhancement of its production equipment
during the year. For instance, the Sichuan unit upgraded its
solar energy system and related facilities, which reduced energy
consumption during the production process by 20% when
compared to the previous year. The Jiangxi unit replaced its coal-
burning boilers with biofuel boilers, which helped to reduce sewage
and exhaust gas emissions. In addition, the beverage division
established an EHS management system and continued to enhance
its management of energy savings during the production process.
These initiatives earned us a number of recognitions in 2012. Our
beverage division was among the first companies to be named a
“Corporation Committed to Green Concepts and Low Carbon”
by the China Product Quality Association, as well as “Outstanding
Enterprise for Energy Saving in China’s Beverage Industry” by the
China Beverage Industry Association.

Environmental Protection Campaigns

The Group understands what an enterprise can initiate to advocate
environment consciousness, and therefore encourages staff and
customers to treasure our resources and to reduce waste and
pollution. “#EE&ZXK CR Vanguard” and its subsidiary brands
have participated in the WWF's “Earth Hour” campaign for the
fourth consecutive year, an event in which the shops turned off
part of their lighting to promote energy savings to their customers.
The supermarket division also participated in “Earth Day” by not
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providing plastic bags to customers at some of its stores, instead
offering customers to redeem free eco-friendly bags with their
purchase receipts. Furthermore, some “#M&% CR Vanguard”
stores carried out mooncake box recycling campaigns during the
mid-Autumn Festival, while “ A EWBE Pacific Coffee” shops put
up posters to educate customers on the different functions of coffee
grounds in a bid to encourage recycling.

Human Resources

We attach great importance to each member of our staff and
recognize the value and contribution of each and every one of
them. Therefore, we are committed to providing a good working
environment, encouraging continuous learning and supporting
personal career development. Each division of our Group has set
their own internal occupational safety guidelines and policies specific
to their operating environments.

We are devoted to promoting a culture of continuing education
and talent development. All of our divisions provide opportunities
of training for staff of different levels, with programs that include
training courses, visits and seminars covering management, sales
and marketing, occupational safety, as well as technical and
interpersonal skills. For example, the retail division has established
a training institute to organize systematic training sessions for its
staff since 2010. During the year under review, a total of more
than 2,000,000 man-hours of trainings were organized by the

AEBHEINEFSARBBTHENRT —RERIIER
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The Group's head office has organized a team
building exercise and communication skills
training for its staff in August 2012.



—

=
=
e am mm we

PIIRHR 2 518 A T RS20 — S EA R
SRR - ZERORT - SENBTBEE
mABMERNASE  DRABEARD
BE -

BTEMEIRBK KM NRES TR
LER - flinASEEMTEXHTHAETHE
TRERS  AFEZBRENEISHKBE
68,000 A A - 18T E FE IR
TlagEEsFe ] NREEEERE T M
B EEB o TEBIE AR AR - EE)
HBEEEE BB TIEEETFE  TER &
BEEhEeS  EPARSNERET -

$% HE MERMZEE THREMR
ERHRAETEEHEE RSN E TR

EAZESENTE  BE - AERKGE
% AEERT[ERE—  HBESLIOA
AL - B AL T R B i
1B BB AIEHE UM REANES BN
BEFRLEA -

Heh BAE¥BER2RBETIRILEEER
ZEMTE  BELZEEEM BTZHEAIK
EUfZ1S09001 E £ 8 ZRBE MR YL 2 E 2T
R (HACCP)RR 3 » I #1S022000F11S014001
l%%ﬁ%%%%i R A ZE S IR H#RISO9001
EEER  TEFEBEIRCPM)EE RARELH
%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁo

-
’?.~_-——

retail division. Apart from our headquarters and business divisions
organizing various training sessions and workshops, we also actively
participate in training courses organized by China Resources
University, our parent company'’s training institute. It was established
to develop the management skills and leadership of senior and
middle management as well as to enhance the competitiveness of
the professional experts.

In order to enhance the sense of belonging of our staff, we are
committed to protecting the rights and welfare of our staff. For
instance, the Group's retail division organizes health checks for
staff on a regular basis with more than 68,000 staff receiving
health checks last year. During the year, the beer division and retail
division held “General Manager Days” to enhance interactive
communication between the management and the staff. In
addition, all business divisions organize leisure courses and sports
competitions, etc. regularly to encourage a work-life balance and
help needy or sick employees through supporting funds.

The Group's concern for its staff is well appreciated and recognized
by its staff. China Resources Suguo was named the "Most Favorable
Company for Staff” by the China Chain Store & Franchise Association.

Food Safety and Product Quality

As a leading company in China’s retail, beer, food and beverage
industries, the Group is committed to the corporate culture of
“putting quality and consumers first” and requires all business
units to meet the relevant quality indicators and to provide better
products and services to ensure consumer satisfaction.

The beer division requires all staff to sign an agreement to bear
responsibility for safety production. This enabled many factories of
the division to achieve 1ISO9001 quality system certification, Hazard
Analysis and Critical Control Point system (HACCP) certification,
1SO22000 and ISO14001 environmental management system
certification. The beverage division also inspects and evaluates
suppliers in accordance with 1SO9001 standards and the Safety
Programme Manager (SPM) systems.
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As for “CR Ng Fung”, the leading quality and safe food supplier in
China, the production process of numerous breeding, slaughtering
and food processing businesses are controlled under the HACCP,
ISO9001, 1IS022000 and Good Agricultural Practices (GAP) standards
and have obtained related certifications. During the period under
review, the division achieved a passing rate of 100% in all trial tests
conducted on its products.

In addition, leveraging the largest and most extensive supermarket
network in the country, the Group’s retail division actively promotes
food safety to its customers. “ZEEE&EZR CR Vanguard” launched its
fourth national safety campaign in March 2012 and organized visits
to its direct agricultural product trading bases and operation plants
in order to promote the importance of food safety to the general

public.
Supply Chain Management

The Group has been stringent in selecting qualified suppliers
to ensure that the whole production process is in line with our
standards and specifications. Not only do we require our new
suppliers to submit all relevant documents for review, we also run
background checks to evaluate their reliability. We conduct regular
inspections and evaluations to review the standards of our suppliers
and cease cooperation with unqualified suppliers.
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= To date, "EHEX CR Vanguard” has

established 115 direct trading bases across 23

provinces in China, covering over 250 cities

and counties.
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To strengthen our supply chain management, the Group started to
establish direct trading bases between farmers and supermarkets
since 2009 in order to provide a stable supply of quality goods for its
supermarkets and to enhance the household incomes of farmers by
providing professional training and guidance on farming technology.
To date, "#EEZR CR Vanguard” has established 115 direct
trading bases of sizable scale across 23 provinces in China, covering
over 250 cities and counties with a total site area of approximately
85,000 mu and about 115,000 farming households who provide
over 165 types of agricultural products to our supermarkets. The
China Chain Store & Franchise Association has already named
four direct agricultural product trading bases of “ZEEEZR CR
Vanguard” as the first batch of “100 Model Direct Trading Bases
between Farmers and Supermarkets”.

Customer Satisfaction

The Group has always been customer oriented and continuously
improves its product quality and service standards. The Group puts
strong emphasis on the shopping experience of its customers, and
therefore established a comprehensive product tracing and recall
mechanism and complaint channels to protect consumer rights.
During the period under review, the Group's quality goods and
services continued to receive wide recognition in the industry.
For instance, “#E &R CR Vanguard" won the “Seven Star
Awards for Food Retail Chains” in the “Awards for Outstanding
Contribution in Food Safety & Public Health” organized by China
Business Network; "#Z Chinese Arts & Crafts" also participated
in the annual "Mystery Shoppers Program" organized by the Hong
Kong Retail Management Association, and was named the leader
in the department stores category for eight consecutive years since
2005; the “Afternoon Tea” products of the “Ef# Kirin" brand
won the “2006-2012 Classic Beverage Award” organized by FMCG
Magazine in China; and CR Ng Fung’s cold and cooked meat
products were given the designation of " Famous and High Quality
Foods of Shanghai” and the “Seven Star Awards for Most Trusted
Food Brand” in the “Awards for Outstanding Contribution in Food
Safety & Public Health” in 2012.



ALl A~ N =+
TEEAWE

ARARE - RIFIBENDEREAREETRER
HEEEMEARREENEZER - AR
AIBMAZEBMNRESKFOLEER RN
MERERRA  BRREENE=S  AHMA
NERFRAE  FRBBRMAFHRE -

TEERESR

“ETRFMANAR  ARRIRMCEE AT
BMFEM] (ATEHBIEEEEFM]) - TR
—ETNF=A=F+—HBHERZZT—ZF+—A8
TNABELBE] HRBETREREMER
SARARES EMHRA (LATEEI Emi
A1) s E EERABERTANL (A
THBEIEEERTA]) FEEERENN
SRS - BIEFANEX M B AR LA & T
BAMEEREDH - AR LR RM &+
EELEE] - MABMDEBTR=_E—=_F1mA
—HER  CEERFMEARA=ZT—=-F=A
“t+—HBELEE]  EPREsETEZMAL
TR A B+l e 2EEE <P A (A T GBI
SPRID P& eI FRIGS - eEBAFMEASE
B AT R - JRAIAIA RIMERE ©

BRUATETE SN - ARRIRZE—=F—A
—HE_ZE-——F-A=+—HHHEZETD
XEARTRIMEMTAGX - WR =T —=4F
WMA—HZ=ZZ——+=-A=+—HHAHEE
ST ST B Ak A ST RIMEST

SRR EVA T B R # T RIF A 418 7 AR
5 ARRMEHNTEEHEREEY - E
EZERR BEAHERTA - RITHIEER
HADNBEENE T AR AMAE —EEMEA AR
SEFRNEFSUF - W ARFAEARE
RAAHRE =Dz WER(BREATEER
FNTER)ASFRE MEBREFARI=
FWERT X BFRENEFARESS
REAZENEEREEERERUREER
RWEF - REEFIEEEF -

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid corporate
governance framework is essential to the successful growth of
the Company and the enhancement of shareholder value. The
Company is committed to attaining and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance and adopts principles of corporate
governance emphasising a quality Board, accountability to all
stakeholders, open communication and fair disclosure.

Corporate Governance Practices

On 8 April 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate Governance
Practice Manual (“CG Manual”). The CG Manual which was revised
on 31 March 2009 and 18 November 2010, incorporates almost all
the Code Provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
("CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) for the time being in force and includes
the implementation details for the Code Provisions and, where
appropriate, the Recommended Best Practices. Pursuant to the
amendments to Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (most of which
became effective on 1 April 2012), the CG Manual was further
revised on 21 March 2012 to incorporate almost all of the Code
Provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“New Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The CG Manual
can be downloaded from our website and copies are available on
request to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions set out in
the CG Code during the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March
2012 and the New Code during the period from 1 April 2012 to 31
December 2012, save and except the following:

In respect of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code and the New
Code, all the non-executive directors are not appointed for a fixed
term. The Board does not believe in any arbitrary term of office.
The current arrangement will give the Company sufficient flexibility
to organize the composition of the Board to serve the needs of
the Group. Further, the Articles of Association of the Company
requires that one-third of the directors (including executive and non-
executive directors) shall retire each year and every director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The directors to retire each year shall be those appointed by the
Board during the year and those who have been longest in office
since their election or re-election. A retiring director is eligible for re-
election.
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Further, in respect of Code Provision A.6.7 of the New Code, Mr. Du
Wenmin, Mr. Yan Biao, Mr. Shi Shanbo and Dr. Zhang Haipeng, the
Non-Executive Directors, and Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric and Dr. Cheng
Mo Chi, the Independent Non-Executive Directors, were unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May
2012 due to other business engagement or travel overseas.

In respect of Code Provision C.1.2 of the New Code, the Company
has not provided all members of the Board with monthly updates
to enable the Board as a whole and each director to discharge their
duties. However, the Company has based on business situation,
provided to the Board from time to time, updated business
information to enable the Board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties.

In respect of Code Provision D.1.4 of the New Code, the Company
did not have formal letters of appointment for directors. However,
the directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company. In addition, the directors are required to refer
to the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued
by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors”, and,
if applicable, “Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in performing
their duties and responsibilities as directors of the Company. Besides,
the directors are required to comply with the requirements under
the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements.

In respect of Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code and the New
Code, Mr. Qiao Shibo was not in Hong Kong due to business
appointments overseas and therefore could not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2012.

In addition to meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
inclusion of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report
is intended to keep our shareholders abreast of the corporate
governance practices of the Company and their development
throughout the reporting year and to invite our shareholders’ views
thereon.
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The Board

The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company'’s
affairs. The directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance
shareholder value and to conduct themselves in accordance with
their duty of care and integrity.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their
decisions include:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4. Approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments,
disposal of assets or any significant capital expenditure of the
Group;

5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system;

6.  Review of the financial performance and results of the
Company; and

7. Recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final
dividend and the declaration of any interim dividends.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in paragraph D.3.1 of the New Code, and in this
regard the duties of the Board shall include:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and the senior
management;

(©  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report as referred to
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
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During the year under review, the Board considered the following

corporate governance matters:

° amendments to Corporate Governance Practice Manual of
the Company;

. amendments to the terms of reference for Audit Committee,
Compensation Committee and Nomination Committee; and

° establishment of shareholders’ communication policy.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts
of each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. Since November 2002, to enable the shareholders to
appraise the operations and performance of the Group, the Group
has been releasing quarterly financial and operational review. The
financial statements are prepared and presented to enable a clear
and balanced assessment of the financial position of the Group.
Regular management reports on the financial position and prospects
of each business unit of the Group are reviewed by the Executive
Committee to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the performance of the Company.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2012, and up to the date

of this Report, there was the following change to the membership

of the Board:

(1) Mr. Shi Shanbo and Dr. Zhang Haipeng resigned as Non-
Executive Directors, and Mr. Huang Daoguo and Mr. Chen
Ying appointed as Non-Executive Directors, on 28 May 2012.

(2)  Mr. Qiao Shibo resigned as Chairman of the Board, Executive
Director and members of the Executive Committee and
Finance Committee, and Mr. Chen Lang was appointed as
Chairman of the Board and resigned as Chief Executive Officer
on 17 August 2012.

(3)  Mr. Hong Jie appointed as Chief Executive Officer, Executive
Director and member of the Finance Committee; and Mr.
Liu Hongji appointed as Vice Chairman of the Board and
Executive Director on 17 August 2012.

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises 14 directors,
including four executive directors (which contain the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer, Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer),
five non-executive directors and five independent non-executive
directors. The biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 54 to 61 of this Annual Report and can also be found on our
website. The relationships (including financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationships) if any, among members of
the Board are disclosed. There is no such relationship as between
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive directors confirming his independence from the Company,
and considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

The experience and views of our independent non-executive
directors are held in high regard and contribute to the effective
direction of the Group. Throughout the year of 2012, the
Company complied with the requirements under the Listing Rules
by maintaining the proportion of its independent non-executive
directors to at least one third of the total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme
for its newly appointed directors. Continuing development and
information are provided to the directors to keep them abreast
of the latest developments involving the Group’s businesses and
operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from
time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition
of skills and expertise appropriate for the requirements of the
businesses of the Company. Appointments are first considered
by the Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board for decision.

All directors (including executive and non-executive directors) are
not appointed for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any
arbitrary term of office and would like to retain sufficient flexibility
to organise the composition of the Board to serve the needs of
the Group. All directors are subject to re-election by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting following their
appointment and at least once every three years on a rotation basis.
The Articles of Association of the Company require that one-third of
the directors (including executive and non-executive directors) shall
retire each year. The directors who are required to retire each year
shall be those appointed by the Board during the year and those
who have been longest in office since their election or re-election. A
retiring director is eligible for re-election.
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During the year of 2012, the positions of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer were held separately. The role of Chairman
was held by Mr. Qiao Shibo until his resignation on 17 August 2012.
Mr. Chen Lang resigned as Chief Executive Officer and appointed
as Chairman on 17 August 2012. Mr. Hong Jie appointed as Chief
Executive Officer on the same date. The segregation of duties of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear distinction
in the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s business.
The respective responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are more fully set out in the CG Manual.

Mr. Qiao Shibo, the Chairman, was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2012 due to
business appointments overseas. The Chief Financial Officer and
either the chairman or at least one member of the Audit Committee,
Compensation Committee and Nomination Committee attended
the annual general meeting to ensure effective communication with
the shareholders of the Company. Separate resolution was proposed
at the annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including re-election of each retiring director, and was put to vote
at the meeting by way of poll. Detailed procedures for conducting a
poll were explained at the meeting.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to review the financial performance
of the Group. Between these regular meetings, the Board meets to
discuss and consider major issues (whether or not required by the
Listing Rules) and also on other occasions when Board decisions are
required. With respect to regular meetings of the Board, directors
usually receive at least 14 days prior written notice of the meeting
and an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than 3
days prior to the meeting. With respect to other meetings called,
directors are given as much notice as is reasonable and practicable in
the circumstances. The directors have full access to information on
the Group and independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary by the directors.
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BEErenN T _FHAMeREH(BFEEM  During 2012, 6 meetings (including meetings by way of circulation

RER) BEBERN T _FHFESEEEE of written resolutions) were held by the Board. The attendance of

REZEZEERNFEHNTER the directors at Board meetings and principal Board committee
meetings held in 2012 is set out in the table below:

PETEIN- Bz EVNZEE FMZEE Y7ZBE MEZEE R¥#ZEE
Annual General Board Audit ~ Compensation  Executive Finance  Nomination
Meeting (BRLRERE Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
(BEHERY Meeting(s) (BRELERE (BELRAE (BHLRERY (BHLENH (BBLRAR
Meeting(s) attended/ Meeting(s) ~ Meeting(s) ~ Meeting(s)  Meeting(s)  Meeting(s)
attended/ BTN held) attended/  attended/  attended/  attended/  attended/

BTR¥held) R S W ETR% held) S{TR# held) B7RH held) BTN held) £47)X¥ held)

BtHREED  Mr. Qiao Shibo® 1 8B n 1313 38147

PSR Mr. Chen Lang? 0/1 44 n 2022 6868

HAEES Mr. Hong Jie®! 00 n n 9% 1921

BEsEAY  Mr LuHongj 00 n n 9%9

BfIEEE M Lai NiHium, Frank n 44 n 2022 6868 n
CEMEEENorbeateDiecos

XREE Mr. Du Wenmin 0N 304 0

i Vs Mr. Yan Biao on 44 W

Rk Mr. Wei Bin N 33 n

FEEELS  Mr. Huang Daoguo® 000 10 n

BELEE Mr. Chen Ying® 000 10 0

FEBEED M. ShiShanbo? 0/1 1 00

%iEEBLe  Dr. Zhang Haipeng® 0/1 10 000

FAEEE  Mr Houang TaiNinh n 44 n 44 0 n

FRERT Dr. Li Ka Cheung, ric 0N 34 2 444 0 M

BREELT Dr. Cheng Mo Chi 0/1 44 M 44 0

BEREE Mr. Bernard Chamwut Chan 17 44 0 44 0

g Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 1N 4/4 20 20 22




GEX

Notes:

R: TEHI& % Regular Meeting

S: 5l & 5% Special Meeting

W ZERFEZR Written Resolutions

(1) BEHREERETEERIE WTEF ROTZESKERIBZREGRE  RZZ——FN\A+LHER-

Mr. Qiao Shibo resigned as Chairman of the Board, Executive Director and members of the Executive Committee and Finance Committee
with effect from 17 August 2012.

(2) BHRPRCERZERETEER  WEHIERNTE RT——FN\AT+tBER-
Mr. Chen Lang appointed as Chairman of the Board and resigned as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 17 August 2012.
(3) AREEBREZERERATE  PWTEERUBZEEGEKE  R_T——F/\A+tHEXK -

Mr. Hong Jie appointed as Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director and member of the Finance Committee with effect from 17 August
2012.

4 BHEAEREEREFEAEIRENTES R-T——F/N\AT-EEEK-
Mr. Liu Hongji appointed as Vice Chairman of the Board and Executive Director with effect from 17 August 2012.
(5) EBRAEWEEFRTES R-E-_FRA-TNEEX-
Mr. Huang Daoguo appointed as Non-Executive Director with effect from 28 May 2012.
(6) MREBEERZEFNTES R_T——FRA-TNHEK-
Mr. Chen Ying appointed as Non-Executive Director with effect from 28 May 2012.
(7))  AEBEARMEERTES R-T-—FRA-TNHER-
Mr. Shi Shanbo resigned as Non-Executive Director with effect from 28 May 2012.
(8 REBHLIFEFNTES R-T-—FRA-TN\HER-
Dr. Zhang Haipeng resigned as Non-Executive Director with effect from 28 May 2012.
(9) ZE-FEZFMEE®RE  HP SRS SRUEERERLABE -

One of the Compensation Committee resolutions was passed by way of written resolutions and the other one of the Compensation
Committee resolutions was passed by way of physical meeting in 2012.

(100 ZZE—_FEZHITZEGRS  2HUEMREEFABB -
All of the Executive Committee resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions in 2012.
(1) ZE——FEZMBZEEGRE AP T RUERFET  ERRA T HRAZERARRL ARG -

Fifty-seven of the Finance Committee resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions and eleven of the Finance Committee
resolutions were passed by way of physical meeting in 2012.

(12) ZE-—FEZRAZEDRE  EP—RUERVUET B RAEMRERLEE -

One of the Nomination Committee resolutions was passed by way of written resolutions and the other one of the Nomination Committee
resolutions was passed by way of physical meeting in 2012.
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Directors’ Training

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the New Code which took
effect on 1 April 2012, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and professional
development program for directors.

Each newly appointed director would receive an induction package
covering the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of
a listed company. The Company also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the directors’ knowledge and skill.

Al directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company has sent reading materials to directors on regulatory
updates or information relevant to the Company or its business.

The Company has received from all directors records of their
continuous professional development trainings during the year.
Details of which are set out in below table:

FEEERRE2ER
Type of Continuous Professional Development

HERAE KRR MEFEALE

BEKRnER REEK RHEE

WHeE - &3 ERRER

e%F, F:#iEHA  Reading regulatory AN

Attending and/or updates or EHEZEE

giving talks at seminar information relevant Visiting the
and/or conference  to the Company or its Company’s business
and/or forums business in P.R.C.

BREA%4  Mr. Chen lang v/ / v/
HEA%EAE M Hong Jie v/ / v/
24 M. Liu Hongji v/ v v/
B se . Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank v/ / v/
X R%&EA  Mr. DuWenmin v v
BRe%E  Mr Yan Biao v/ v v/
FostfedE Mr.WeiBin v/ v 7
EEF LA Mr. Huang Daoguo / v
BEfES% - Mr. Chen Ying v/ v/ /
FAEL4L  Mr. Houang Tai Ninh v / v
FR¥FEE L Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric v/ Y %
MEEEL+ Dr. Cheng Mo Chi v/ / v/
fEE BS54 Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan v/ / v/
B4 Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon v/ v/

——-h\
~
~
~
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Delegation by the Board

While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the Company, certain responsibilities of the Board are
delegated as follows:

(@ Committees — various committees have been established
by the Board to administer certain specified functions of
the Company’s affairs. The main committees include:
the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Compensation Committee. The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Compensation Committee which set out,
among other things, the duties, functions and composition of
these committees are set out in the CG Manual and available
on the Company’s website;

(b)  Chief Executive Officer — the day-to-day management of
the Company'’s business is delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer who is accountable to the Board; and

(©  Senior Management — certain responsibilities of corporate and
operating management are delegated to senior management
of the Company within the parameters as specified by the
Board.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2012, the Nomination Committee comprised
four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Houang
Tai Ninh (chairman), Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. Bernard Charnwut
Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, and one executive director,
Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank. The duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
and to make recommendation after such review and to assess the
suitability and qualification of any proposed director candidate.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put
forward for consideration and adoption, where appropriate, by the
Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee setting
out its duties and procedures was revised on 18 November 2010.
Pursuant to the amendments to Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
(most of which became effective on 1 April 2012), the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee was further revised on 21
March 2012 and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting and passed a written resolution.
The work of the Nomination Committee included the following
recommendations to the Board:

o The appointment of Mr. Huang Daoguo and Mr. Chen Ying as
Non-Executive Directors.

° The appointment of Mr. Chen Lang as Chairman of the
Board.

. The appointment of Mr. Hong Jie as Chief Executive Officer,
Executive Director and member of the Finance Committee;
and Mr. Liu Hongji as Vice Chairman of the Board and
Executive Director.

Compensation Committee

As at 31 December 2012, the Compensation Committee comprised
four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Kwing
Chu, Gordon (chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung,
and Eric, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi. The duties of the Compensation
Committee include making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure of remuneration of directors
and senior management, establishing a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on remuneration and determining
the specific remuneration packages for all directors and senior
management. The terms of reference of the Compensation
Committee seting out its duties and procedures was revised on 18
November 2010. Pursuant to the amendments to Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (most of which became effective on 1 April 2012),
the terms of reference of the Compensation Committee was further
revised on 21 March 2012 and are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The remuneration of the directors and senior executives is
determined with reference to the performance and responsibilities
of the individual, the performance of the Group, prevailing market
conditions and remuneration benchmarks from comparable
companies. Directors and employees also participate in bonus
arrangements based on the performance of the Group and the
individual.
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During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met

once and passed a written resolution on matters including:

° Approval of the remuneration packages 2012 for some of the
directors and senior management of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management who are not directors are
within the following bands:

FriEaE (A% ) AE
Remuneration band (HK$) Number of persons
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 2
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Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee comprised four
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cheung,
Eric (chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi and Mr.
Bernard Charnwut Chan. One of its members has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. No member of this Committee is a member
of the former or existing auditors of the Company. The membership
of the Audit Committee has complied with the Listing Rules
requirement that the majority of its members must be independent
and one of whom must have appropriate professional qualification.
The existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee which
was revised on 18 November 2010, are modeled on “A Guide
for Effective Audit Committee” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and have also adopted the principles
set out in the CG Code for the time being in force. Pursuant to the
amendments to Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (most of which
became effective on 1 April 2012), the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee was further revised on 21 March 2012 and are
available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and making

recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment

and removal of external auditors, review of the Company’s financial

information and oversight of the Company’s financial report system

and internal control procedures. During the year under review, the

Audit Committee met on four occasions. The work of the Audit

Committee in 2012 included reviews of:

o the external auditor’s report to the Audit Committee in
respect of 2011 audit;

. the 2011 annual report and annual results announcement;

o the external auditor’s internal control memorandum in respect
of the 2011 audit;

o connected party transactions;

o the quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March
2012 and the related results announcement;

. the 2012 interim report and interim results announcement;

o the quarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September
2012 and the related results announcement;

o the quarterly reports of internal audit activities;

. the 2012 internal audit review;

. the staffing and resources of the Group’s Internal Audit
Department; and

. the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
functions.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the
external auditor on three occasions.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and
independence of the external auditor of the Company. The Audit
Committee concludes that the independence of the external
auditor of the Company has not been compromised by non-audit
services performed for the Group. The statement by the external
auditor about its reporting responsibilities relating to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 113 to 114. During the
year under review, audit fees paid and payable to the Company’s
external auditor amount to approximately HK$22 million (2011:
approximately HK$19 million); fees related to non-audit services
paid and payable amount to approximately HK$1 million (2011:
approximately HK$1 million).
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The interests held by the directors in the Company’s securities as at
31 December 2012 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages
98 to 102 of this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005, the Company
has adopted a Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions (“Code
of Ethics”) which incorporates the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Code of Ethics has been
amended, approved and reconfirmed by the Board of directors
of the Company on 6 April 2006, 4 April 2007, 31 March 2008
and further revised on 31 March 2009 and 18 November 2010,
respectively. The prohibitions on securities dealing and disclosure
requirements in the Code of Ethics also apply to specified individuals
who include the Group’s senior management and persons who are
privy to price sensitive information of the Group. The Code of Ethics
is on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry with the directors,
all directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2012.

Internal Control

The Board assumes overall responsibility to establish and maintain
sound systems in risk management, internal control and governance
to ensure the effective and efficient accomplishment of corporate
goals and objectives, safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interests as well as ensure the reliability of financial and corporate
reporting. The Board confirms that it is the overall responsibility of
the Board to establish and effectively implement the internal control
system to ensure the smooth operation of business, safeguard he
Group's assets and shareholders’ interests as well as ensure the
reliability of financial statements.

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the
frameworks recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission in the United States
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as the
standards in establishing risk management and control systems
among our Group companies. The Group's internal control system
includes five key elements, namely the existence of an effective
control environment, risk management, communication and
information system, cost effective control activities and monitoring
mechanism.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Every business unit is required to identify and assess the risks and
impact on the respective business unit at least once every year. The
executive management team of each business unit is accountable for
the conduct and performance of each operation in the business unit
within the agreed strategies and similarly the management of each
operation is accountable for its conduct and performance. Policies
and procedures are designed for safeguarding corporate assets,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring transactions
are executed in accordance with management authorisation.
Monthly management reports on the financial results and key
operation indicators are reviewed by the Executive Committee of the
Board. Regular meetings are held with the executive management
team of each business unit to review the actual performance against
budget.

Our Internal Audit Department, reporting to the Audit Committee
and Chairman of the Board respectively, is responsible for
assessing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, formulating an impartial opinion on the effectiveness and
efficiency of the systems, and reporting its findings to the Executive
Committee and the Audit Committee. Follow-up audits will be
conducted in due course to ensure that audit recommendations
are being properly implemented. The Internal Audit Department
conducts independent reviews on the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems on an on-going basis.

Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of
individual business units, the scope of work performed by the
internal audit function covers all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

Results of internal audit activities are reported to the Audit
Committee at least once every quarter and the corrective actions
are taken by the relevant business units. The Board conducts regular
reviews of the Group's internal control system through the Internal
Audit Department and the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Board and the Audit Committee believe that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the Group's assets are
safeguarded and there is no significant area of concerns that may
affect shareholders.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid
up capital of the Company can make a requisition to convene
an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Section 113 of the
Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong (the “Ordinance”). The
requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the registered
office of the Company. Besides, Section 115A of the Ordinance
provides that (i) shareholder(s) representing not less than one-
fortieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders of the Company
or (ii) not less than 50 shareholders holding the shares in the
Company on which there has been paid up an average sum of not
less than HK$2,000 per shareholder can put forward proposals for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company by depositing
a requisition in writing signed by the relevant shareholder(s) at the
registered office of the Company.

Procedure for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as Director

Pursuant to Articles 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, no person other than a director retiring at a meeting
shall, unless recommended by the directors, be appointed a director
at a general meeting unless at least seven days’ previous notice in
writing (to be lodged no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting) shall have been
given to the Company of the intention of any member qualified
to vote at the meeting to propose any person other than a retiring
director for election to the office of director with notice executed by
that person of his willingness to be appointed.

Not less than three nor more than twenty-eight days before the date
appointed for holding a general meeting notice shall be given to all
who are entitled to receive notice of the meeting of any person in
respect of whom notice has been duly given to the Company under
Article 112.1 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

The aforesaid procedures is available on the website of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Investor Relations

The Company’s Articles of Association was revised on 29 May 2009
by special resolution in the 2009 Annual General Meeting in order
to ensure compliance with amendments to the Listing Rules, in
particular, relevant CG Code provisions in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and amendments to the Companies Ordinance, and to bring
the Articles of Association up to date and in line with the current
practice in Hong Kong.

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and fair disclosure of information to its shareholders.
Accurate and fair disclosure is necessary for shareholders to form
their own judgment on the operation and performance of the
Group.

The Company has established a Shareholder's Communication Policy
and the said policy is available on the website of the Company.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally
disclosed information deserves a reasonable reply. The Strategic
Planning and Investor Relations Department is responsible for
managing investor relations and will respond to such shareholders’
and analysts’ enquiries.

The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors, existing
and prospective partners and counterparties with information on
the Company’s corporate governance practices. Copies of such
information can be obtained from the Company Secretary upon
written request.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Strategic Planning and Investor
Relations Department of the Company. The contact details are as
follows:

Strategic Planning and Investor Relations Department
China Resources Enterprise, Limited

39th Floor, China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Email: ir@cre.com.hk

Tel No.: 852-2829 9889

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company's Registrar.

For and on behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beer, food and beverage
businesses. The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and property investment. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries and associate are shown on pages 188 to 193. An
analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segments is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

Group Profit

The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 115 and
shows the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share amounting to
HK$360 million was paid to shareholders during the year.

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary
share amounting to approximately HK$360 million payable on or
about 14 June 2013 to all persons registered as holders of ordinary
shares on 30 May 2013.

Fixed Assets

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Properties

A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on
pages 194 to 197.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital during the year are set out in note
30 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 31 to the financial statements respectively.

Charitable Donations

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$10 million.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Lang (Chairman)
(Appointed as Chairman on 17 August 2012)
Mr. Hong Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 17 August 2012)
Mr. Liu Hongji (Vice Chairman)
(Appointed on 17 August 2012)
Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Qiao Shibo (Chairman)
(Resigned on 17 August 2012)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Du Wenmin

Mr. Yan Biao

Mr. Wei Bin

Mr. Huang Daoguo  (Appointed on 28 May 2012)
Mr. Chen Ying (Appointed on 28 May 2012)
Mr. Shi Shanbo (Resigned on 28 May 2012)
Dr. Zhang Haipeng  (Resigned on 28 May 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi

Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan

Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chen Lang, Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank, Mr. Du
Wenmin, Mr. Yan Biao and Mr. Wei Bin shall retire by rotation and
are eligible for re-election.
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hong Jie, Mr. Liu Hongji, Mr. Huang Daoguo and
Mr. Chen Ying shall retire and are eligible for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries,
its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries were a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Biographical details of directors and senior management are set out
on pages 54 to 61.

Share Option Scheme

During the year, the Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication to
the objectives of the Company by the participants (“Scheme”).

The Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting
on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently amended on 20
August 2004 by an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders, and
expired on 31 January 2012. The board of directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible participants including any executive
or non-executive directors of the Group (or persons proposed to
be appointed as such), any discretionary object of a discretionary
trust established by any employee, executive or non-executive
directors of the Group, any executives and employees, consultants,
professional and other advisors to the Group (or persons proposed
to be appointed as such), chief executive, substantial shareholder
of the Company, associated companies of the Group, associates
of directors, chief executive and substantial shareholder of the
Company, and employees of substantial shareholder and where a
substantial shareholder is a company, employees of subsidiaries of a
substantial shareholder.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Subject to the requirements of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”), the exercise price shall be such price
determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion
and shall be no less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the 5 business days immediately proceeding the date
of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share on the date of grant.
The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme
(including options to be granted to the directors, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective
associates) is equivalent to the maximum limit permitted under the
Listing Rules. The scheme mandate limit under the Scheme was
refreshed and renewed by an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on 20 August
2004 which enabled the grant of further share options to subscribe
up to 210,462,321 shares representing 10% of the shares in issue
as at the said date. As at the date of this report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Scheme is 3,453,000 shares
which represent 0.14% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested over a
period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance
of a grant and exercisable within a period of 10 years immediately
after the date of grant.

Save as disclosed below, no share options have been granted (or
granted in excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme during the year in relation
to each of the directors or their respective associates, employees,
and other participants of the Scheme.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

(a) Directors or their associates

As at 31 December 2012 and during the year, the following
directors had interests in respect of options to subscribe for
shares granted under the Scheme. Share options held by

BHERRENT directors granted under the Scheme are set out below:
HEfE
EhiEng LR
Number of share options' &N
RipfER:
RZF-ZF BT
RZE-ZF +=A Price of
i@ -A-8 REFE REFE WRER REFE =t+-H Company's
BET HAITH il 11 B kM HARITHE shares for
Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled lapsed  Outstanding options
BEity RHAH price at during during during during at evercised?
Name of director Date of grant HK$ 1112012 the year the year the year theyear  31/12/2012 HK$
HES
Executive Director
BARZE-ZF
NATHREZAE)
Hong Jie (Appointed
on 17 August 2012) 25/05/2004 9.15 290,000 - - - - 290,000 -
BUkHTES
Independent Non-
Executive Director
FFHE
Li Ka Cheung, Eric 02/06/2004 955 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
A3 Total 490,000 - - - - 490,000
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

(b) Employees and other participants

ARBZEES
HRAKEZREE  BEREZBRER
FEREX(F)BREE - UTRAKEE
B(TEREARRES) A2 EERE
LAt BIER LB EROBR -

() ER(TERALFEE)

Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the
Company are employees of the Group and details of share

options held by them are disclosed in paragraph (a) above.

Summary of share options granted to employees of the Group
(other than directors of the Company) and other participants

under the Scheme are set out below.

0] Employees (other than directors of the Company)

MEITEE

RS e 2 T

Number of share options’ P VNG|

[ E 52

S

RoB——& +=A Price of

17618 —H—H RAFE RAFE RAFE RAFE =t+—8 Company's

BT AT B 718 Gal ES RARTTIE shares for

Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding options

b=k price at during during during during at exercised?

Date of grant HK$ 1172012 the year the year the year theyear  31/12/2012 HK$

07/02/2002 7.7 84,000 - - - 84,000 - -

19/04/2002 7.40 138,000 - 128,000 - 10,000 - 27.694

02/08/2002 832 150,000 - 150,000 - - - 28.000

14/04/2003 6.29 4,000 - - - - 4,000 -

08/10/2003 8.90 2,000 - - - - 2,000 -

14/01/2004 9.72 1,248,000 - 609,000 - - 639,000 25.130

20/04/2004 9.89 840,000 - 450,000 - - 390,000 25.200

25/05/2004 9.15 150,000* - 38,000 - - 112,000 22.134

04/10/2004 10.35 3,310,000 - 744,000 - - 2,566,000 25.847
/IN5tSub-total 5,926,000 - 2,119,000 - 94,000 3,713,000

* BEAREEEFNENE S

* including reallocation due to appointment of director
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

(C) BEEREMBEE (&) (b) Employees and other participants (continued)
(i) Ath2HEE (i) Other Participants
BETTE
EREHE BB
Number of share options' P N
Rt E1E2
RZF-ZF BB
RZE——F +=A Price of
17fefE —A—A RAFE RAFEE RAFE RARFE =t+-A Company's
AT RIARTTEE Hili 7 e ESd HARITEE shares for
Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding options
i B E price at during during during during at exercised?
Date of grant HK$ 112012 the year the year the year theyear  31/12/2012 HK$
05/03/2002 7.35 361,000 - 70,000 - 291,000 - 28.286
/INitSub-total 361,000 - 70,000 - 291,000 -
B Notes:
1. AR RESL B 1R R P S I 2 AN A RIFEREAAR D © 1. Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares in the
Company covered by the share options.
2. RENBITEBREMREZAARRNER - & 2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for the options exercised
FEEEARETTEE B AR - IR PR AT AT R W during the year is the weighted average of the closing prices quoted on
B2 hETFHE - the Stock Exchange immediately before the date of exercise of options.
HREERTHEREMRANETBERFIENTBRE The accounting policy adopted for the share options granted is set out in
Mzt — R o note 25 to the financial statements.
3. X BARE 2 BRI N AR T 3. All the share options granted as mentioned above will expire on the date
FzHER MEXRLERE 2 RERBEIT - falling ten years from the date of grant and consideration for each grant is
HK$1.00.
4. A EIREFE I IR DA - R BEERTTE 4 As no share options were granted during the year under review, no price
A e disclosure is applicable.
5. ERE RN TR ERR L ERERS 5 Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested over a period

ERNFZHRART - WEERG 2 AETTiE
BHERTTE -

of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a grant
and exercisable within a period of not more than 10 years immediately
after the date of grant.

7// ///ﬂ/ﬂ/ﬂ/n
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(F) REQFAERITEBRKRAEBRED

Directors’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”),
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO, including interests
and short positions which the directors and chief executive of the
Company are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
SFO, or which are required to be and are recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of SFO or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying

FEENRER shares of the Company

HihhEm=E D2

Aggregate

we ./ %kRE RERGER percentage of

FEHEZ Long position/ BEShE - ¢E] Number of interest?

Name of director Short position Number of shares underlying shares! (%)

PR BA R 500,000 - 0.02
Chen Lang Long position

HAR 35 350,000 290,000 0.03
Hong Jie Long position

Bk TR 110,000 - 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

HXR TR 100,000 - 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position

s e 500,000 - 0.02
Yan Biao Long position

TR TR - 200,000 0.01
Li Ka Cheung, Eric Long position

FRED BB e 40,000 - 0.01

Bernard Charnwut Chan

—

Long position
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

=
=
e R

(F) AREQ TS RTZERKAEBEKS (@) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying
PEENER(E) shares of the Company (continued)

MRE - Notes:

1. 15 E X[ BEREE | — &Rl B IR R BRAERTS K 1. This refers to underlying shares of the Company covered by share options
HARQBMEEIRD - ZSERERSBNIELTUE granted as detailed above under the section headed “Share Option
MRKREBRASTET R - Scheme”, such options being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

2. BARAIRGD RIBERGD R F R BEEARRER 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
B —HF+Z A=+ HEBTRABENE D and underlying shares of the Company to the total issued share capital of
e o the Company as at 31 December 2012.

3. EXAFEBEC SRR EEUESREAZSNE 3. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity as
Ao beneficial owner.

() A EECRTZERKXIAEEERKR (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying
BHEENER shares of associated corporations
RH  ETNEEHREHEBLIE(TRR As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the
(BEEEERIHINNEETEBRER issued ordinary shares and underlying shares covered by
RN RE T I FTIR B AT R BE AR () <~ BE AR A options granted under the share option schemes of associated
hEEER  ZEBERELBENIELETA corporations (within the meaning of SFO), such options being
EMRZWHIRALTAETA unlisted physically settled equity derivatives:

(i) R—EEEEE-EEEMARAL ()  Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
AI(EHEM ) BBITE R KR outstanding under the share option schemes of an
BEEEMERET S M ARITERE associated corporation, China Resources Land Limited
At 2 s - (“CR Land"):

WARATIE HiG#EmE

Bz e 1B Apt?

Number of FERETT Aggregate

e/ KR RinEE share Exercise B A percentage

BEHEA Long position/ Number of options price Date of of interest?

Name of director Short position shares  outstanding’ HK$ grant (%)

g e 10,000 - - - 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

MR HE 840,000 - - - 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position

) ge 1,992,000 - - _ 0.03
Yan Biao Long position

R He 500,000 - - - 0.01
Chen Ying Long position

i - — — \
-
— ? ~ — o == - — 9 ~ - - — ?
-~y —-—
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BEECESER®) Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(2) AHEBEECRTZERKRIERERKR (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying
BREENERE) shares of associated corporations (continued)

M Notes:

1. AR RESI B IR PSRV EE T B H AR R AR (D 48 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of
e CR Land covered by the share options.

2. IR RS R EREER G RABBARMHBEIEE 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
EEMR -_T——F+-A=1+—HEBTRAR and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share capital of CR
ECIER I Land as at 31 December 2012.

3. X B ESEHEEEAERSHAEAZE 3 All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity as

[ eT=I beneficial owner.
iy HA—MEEEEAE - EBRAIERE (i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
BARNEREKR D BT outstanding under the share option schemes of an
MR IEE B R IR & M R TT associated corporation, China Resources Gas Group
SRR i < W Limited (“CR Gas"):
AT AR
SR 17128 Ep
Number of BT Aggregate
WE /KA e 4= share Exercise R AHE percentage
e Long position/ Number of options price Date of of interest?
Name of director Short position shares  outstanding’ HK$ grant (%)
N e 100,000 - - - 0.01
Hong Jie Long position
2|3t E Sy 372,000 - - - 0.02
Liu Hongji Long position
Eiyegd e 10,000 - - - 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
YR e 54,000 - - - 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position
BEE - Notes:

REACHER B SRR R EBRRABRR DR 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of
o CR Gas covered by the share options.

2. BFESRNEBRREN RAARBRG BEEE 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
HRRR —E——F+_A=+—HEETREE and underlying shares of CR Gas to the total issued share capital of CR

ECIER I Gas as at 31 December 2012.
B ESEHHSESUERSEEAZE 3. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity as
beneficial owner.
/ /
y
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() A EECRTZERKRIAEEERKR (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

HREENERS () shares of associated corporations (continued)
@iy R—EAEEEE -EBEHERE (i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options

BRAR([EEEN DEBITERK
N AR YR EE B E 0 B R AT & M R AT

outstanding under the share option schemes of
an associated corporation, China Resources Power

1 R RS 2 Wk - Holdings Company Limited (“CR Power”):

HARITEE bR

BiES e IR ADLLe

Number of FERETT Aggregate

"R/ KA A& 120 B share Exercise BH A percentage

BENY Long position/ Number of options price Date of of interesté

Name of director Short position shares  outstanding’ HK$ grant (%)

PR3 ge - 152,7007 4.641 18/11/20054 0.01

Chen Lang Long position 203,6007 6.925  05/09/2006°

HA -} 215,000 - - - 0.01
Hong Jie Long position

PR HE - 61,080 2750  12/11/20032 0.01
Liu Hongji Long position

by g -} 10,000 - - - 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

HXR HE 480,240 - - - 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position

) ge - 244,320 2.750  12/11/20032 0.01

Yan Biao Long position 325,760 3.919 18/03/20053
Bi%E Notes:

1.

=
=
e am mm w=

BREY R REREMS RNERE NBEROE 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of

2 CR Power covered by the share options.

BRES AHRL - SHEas 2=+ TTHEKREAE 2. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the
HMEEBFEN  RREBBHET—AFRL - 230 date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant.
BN —E—=F T ANAERM - HlERE All options expire on 6 October 2013. Consideration for each of the grants
HERERBS T - mentioned above is HK$1.00.

BEITHRY  8#HE 2 -+ AHREE 3. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the
HEEBAFET  RRLEAMT—AFRE - 230 date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant.
BRESN -_E—AF=A+/\BEH - LiltEZx All options expire on 18 March 2015. Consideration for each of the grants
RHMWRER/BBIT - mentioned above is HK$1.00.

\
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(b)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying

DHRESNER (&) shares of associated corporations (continued)

BEE - (88) Notes: (continued)

4. ERESTHRE S8E 2=+ IJHEFHA 4. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the
HEERAELEA:  RELAHES—RBERLE 25 date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant.
BN —_Z—RAF+—A+/\HEm - L= All options expire on 18 November 2015. Consideration for each of the
REHOREREE 1T - grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

5. BRESRBEY §8E 2=+ ATAKHE 5. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the
HEERFRT  WREBHE—RERE 238 date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant.
BRESNR S "FNARBER - LilERE All options expire on 5 September 2016. Consideration for each of the
HEREABEIT - grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

6. IR TS RS IR KRR () a1 b5 6. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
BENR-E——F+-F=+—HB2ZB%TEAK and underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued share capital of CR
BEHBESL Power as at 31 December 2012.

7. BREAST 4118 MR AL B2 356,300M48RE A 7. Mr. Chen Lang was deemed to be interested in 356,300 underlying shares
pa: £ through interests of his spouse.

8. WRINFE7SERTEEIN - EXFTHEEZTE#ER 8. Save as otherwise specified under notes 7, all interests disclosed above are
EERUERHEAAZTNER being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.

(iv) R—EHEEEE —E=RAORIERE (iv)  Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
RAEN([ZEEKR]) BT EEK outstanding under the share option schemes of an
LB EKEEIRESTEI S RTT associated corporation, China Resources Cement
fPRENIE s Holdings Limited (“CR Cement”):
RIARTTIE bR
EREHE 1T1EE Epa
Number of BT Aggregate
WE /KR ¢! share Exercise K AH percentage
BEMEZ Long position/ Number of options price Date of of interest?
Name of director Short position shares  outstanding' HK$ grant (%)
AR HE 700,000 - - - 0.01
Hong Jie Long position
R 59} 922,000 - - - 0.01
Liu Hongji Long position
g HE 40,000 - - - 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
BRE HE 230,000 - - - 0.01
Chen Ying Long position

M EE Notes:

1. FER RS B BB BT RVE BB DR 1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of
o CR Cement covered by the share options.

2. TR FTS REZERACRIR D RABBAR D REEE 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
KRR ZZ2——F+-A=+—-REBETERLFE and underlying shares of CR Cement to the total issued share capital of CR
ECIER I a Cement as at 31 December 2012.

3. IXIRE s 2R ERUAEREREALE 3. Allinterests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity as

— -— vl L
- \173*#75
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beneficial owner.
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Shareholders with Notifiable Interests

As at 31 December 2012, other than the interests and short
positions as disclosed above, the following persons have interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
they fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company:
BERGAEEA
HERENRHEE
Number of
shares in which
1R/ KR the interested HREAHL
Name of Long position/ party is deemed Percentage of
oL SR ! interested party Short position to have interests  shareholding (%)
REZERE AT China Resources National e 1,232,764,380 51.33
(lEBaral) Corporation (“CRNC") Long position
(H3ED) (Note 1)
EBERMARAT(MEE1)  China Resources Co., Limited e 1,232,764,380 51.33
(Note 1) Long position
CRC Bluesky Limited(Fif5£1)  CRC Bluesky Limited (Note 1) e 1,232,764,380 51.33
Long position
=H(EE)BRAT China Resources (Holdings) e 1,232,764,380 51.33
(T#=8EE ) (1) Company Limited (“CRH") Long position
(Note 1)
HZIZEAEAT(ME1)  Globe Fame Investments e 1,232,764,380 51.33
Limited (Note 1) Long position
Genesis Asset Managers, Genesis Asset Managers, e 144,188,662 6.00
LLP(Pff3E2) LLP (Note 2) Long position
Capital Research and Capital Research and e 147,514,000 6.14
Management Company Management Company Long position
(HI3E3) (Note 3)
The Capital Group Companies, ~ The Capital Group Companies, & 147,514,000 6.14
Inc.(F3E3) Inc. (Note 3) Long position
i - — — \
-
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1. HEREARARCRBAEREE(BIE)ERA
A AEBEENZENBARNESEREAZS
P o EHEEBCRC Bluesky Limitedty 2 &M
B F] * fCRC Bluesky Limited &M AR
ARZEREMAR] - MEBRNDAERAR R HE
HARNTFE100% e o Fit - EHEE - CRC
Bluesky Limited - B (H H R R 7 R EFHA AR
WARBERN A QR o

2. Genesis Asset Managers, LLP LIS &2 Hni5H
B&15 o

3. Capital Research and Management Company * %
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. &) & & [} & 2
A IRAKIE 5 HHFH ARG, Bt 0 The Capital
Group Companies, Inc. 1% 18 & ¥ i 19 5 5 2 711
%o

ERBRRzEHETERE

BIEETERGZ  EHEEATREEALR
Al 35% B BEITIRASNBITEIEAA QRS
—HABREZ O (THEEXEBENER
AEEREERERER) RZE—Z-F+=A
—+—R AERRRETLOAETZERRE
BERBEIS10ETL  ZEHABEBN T
—=F—AZE-ZT—XFRAE®-
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Shareholders with Notifiable Interests (continued)

Notes:

1.

Globe Fame Investments Limited (currently known as CRH (Enterprise)
Limited), a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH, held the shares in the capacity
of beneficial owner. CRH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC Bluesky
Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned subsidiary of China Resources Co.,
Limited, which is in turn held as to 100% by CRNC. So, CRH, CRC Bluesky
Limited, China Resources Co., Limited and CRNC are deemed to have
corporate interest in the shares.

Genesis Asset Managers, LLP held the shares in the capacity of investment
manager.

Capital Research and Management Company, a wholly owned subsidiary
of The Capital Group Companies, Inc., held the shares in the capacity of
investment manager. So, The Capital Group Companies, Inc. is deemed to
have corporate interest in the shares.

Specific Performance Obligations on Controlling
Shareholder

According to certain loan agreements, CRH is required to remain as
a beneficial owner of at least 35% of the issued share capital of the
Company or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether directly
or indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company. As at 31
December 2012, the aggregate amount of the facilities subject to
such obligation were HK$15.1 billion. Such facilities will expire from
January 2013 to May 2016.
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REEEHEREEEE S

RZZEZAENA-+B - EBEDR
(HEEH)ARAREE ) (KAQFN
—REEMBRGE) BEARRBMZEREE
EREBER T RIEEERSE  BERA
e RN N BEMIEE N REIR TS
R e AR —ZE——F,"A=-1+/\H
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A—BZ2-ZFT—AFA=1+H - RBEZ
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HEB L ABEKT770,000 (E-F
——FXRNAZ=ZTHZAZEAEBEK700,000
L) ERERRBEAG B RIET
FE-HUWBNEHEMEREE  REER
HEu B (fEAEBREEREBEANEAER
HEINNREE)NRE - ZhhsA
Hi=F —ZT——F+A—HEEW-

RZBZHAESNAZ+TANE - BRRE
= HEE /M2 & WEB 2 R Dragon Rider
Development Limited ([ DRDLJ) #&&] T &
EEE W - HEEEIEDROLN N EH
BR—ERE - AR T ——F XA
ZHN\BRTEBMGZAE D EER—
PR-ZBE——EXNA T NBEEZHN
ERpZETUER  Fipaasia ==
——F+A—BRE_ZEZ-RENA=1
A - REZpGE  BER T ——FtA
—RA#EMDRDLY 1 A & & #2,200,000
T (E-FE——FA=Z+tHZAREAEHS
#2,000,0007T) ' EAEERBELRF A
B AE E = EH RN IS ERE
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Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “continuing connected
transactions” under the Listing Rules. These transactions also
regard as “Related Party Transactions” under applicable accounting
principles, which are set out in note 36 to the financial statements
and with respect to which the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Details of those continuing connected transactions
which are subject to the reporting requirements under Rule 14A.46
of the Listing Rules are summarized as follows:

(a)

Facilities management agreement and godown
management agreement

On 26 June 2009, China Resources Logistics (Yuen Fat Wharf
& Godown) Limited (“Yuen Fat”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, renewed facilities management agreements
with CRH, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
for the provision of management services by Yuen Fat on
the port premises and facilities developed on a site owned
by CRH in Kowloon. This agreement has been renewed
by a new framework agreement dated 28 June 2012 for a
period commencing from 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2015, as
announced by the Company on 28 June 2012. Under the
agreement, Yuen Fat had paid CRH a monthly fee of HK$0.77
million from 1 July 2012 (monthly fee of HK$0.7 million up
to 30 June 2012) in consideration for the right to keep, as
the service fee payable by CRH to Yuen Fat for that relevant
month, all cargo handling fees, service charges and other
payments collected by Yuen Fat at its own expenses from
independent third parties. The agreement was for a term of 3
years commencing on 1 July 2012.

On 26 June 2009, Yuen Fat also renewed godown
management agreement with Dragon Rider Development
Limited (“DRDL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH, for
the management, by Yuen Fat, of a godown owned by
DRDL in Kowloon. This agreement has been renewed by
a new framework agreement dated 28 June 2012 for a
period commencing from 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2015, as
announced by the Company on 28 June 2012. Under the
agreement, Yuen Fat had paid DRDL a monthly fee of HK$2.2
million from 1 July 2012 (monthly fee of HK$2 million up to
30 June 2012) in consideration for the right to keep, as the
service fee payable by DRDL to Yuen Fat for that relevant
month, all license fees and other payments collected by
Yuen Fat at its own expenses from independent third parties.
This agreement has the same term as the above facilities
management agreement. The above facilities management
agreement and godown management agreement are vital to
the operation of Yuen Fat.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(a)

(b)

Facilities management agreement and godown
management agreement (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate
receipt of service fees payable by CRH and DRDL to Yuen Fat
amounted to HK$182,070,000 while the aggregate payment
of monthly fees by Yuen Fat to CRH and DRDL amounted to
HK$34,020,000.

Tenancy agreement

On 20 September 2010, a framework agreement was entered
into by the Company and CRH with a term commencing
from 20 September 2010 to 31 December 2012 pursuant
to which the Group may lease various premises from the
CRH and its subsidiaries or associates. This agreement has
been renewed by a new framework agreement dated 21
December 2012 for a period commencing from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2015, as announced by the Company
on 21 December 2012 and according to new framework
agreement, CRH and its subsidiaries or associates may also
lease various premises from the Group. It was agreed, inter
alia, that any tenancy agreements to be entered into by the
CRH and its subsidiaries or associates (no matter as landlord
or tenant) and a member of the Group (no matter as landlord
or tenant) should be on normal commercial terms. Each
transaction should be either conducted at market price
or at such other prices as the parties may agree fairly and
reasonably in the circumstances as if they were independent
third party. In addition, each transaction to be entered into
will be documented in a separate written agreement with
a duration not exceeding twenty years for premises mainly
used for retail or its incidental purposes. For premises not
used for retail or its incidental purposes, the duration of the
written agreement should not exceed three years. As CRH
is the intermediate holding company of the Company, CRH
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the framework
agreement will enable the Group to secure a supply of the
premises for its business as well as enable the Group to better
utilize its existing resources to generate revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate
amount of the rent, management fees and other related
charges payable by the Group to CRH and its subsidiaries or
associates was HK$79,755,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(]

Decoration agreement

On 19 November 2010, the Company announced that the
Group intended to continue to enter into new contracts
for the design, decoration and furnishing of the Group’s
offices, retail outlets and investment properties under the
framework terms with Uconia Company Limited (“Uconia”),
a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China Resources National
Corporation (“CRNC"), and its subsidiaries (“Uconia Group”)
for the three years ending 31 December 2013. According to
the framework terms, each provision of decoration services
by the Uconia Group to members of the Group would be
documented in a separate written agreement with duration
not exceeding three years and each contract of decoration
services would be entered into on normal commercial terms
and the prices would be either at market prices or at prices
no less favorable to the Group than those available from
independent third parties. The granting of contracts to Uconia
Group for the design, decoration and furnishing of the retail
outlets, supermarkets and offices are in the usual and ordinary
course of business of the Group. As CRNC is the ultimate
holding company of the Company, CRNC is a connected
person of the Company and Uconia Group is an associate of
CRNC under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount
charged by the Uconia Group totaled HK$65,831,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(d) Construction agreement

(e)

On 6 July 2010, a framework agreement (“Framework
Agreement”) was entered into by China Resources Retail
(Group) Company Limited and 2 EiEEEF R A 7] (China
Resources Construction Corp.) (“CR Construction”) with a
term commencing from the 6 July 2010 to 31 December
2012. This agreement has been renewed by a new
framework agreement entered into by the Company and
CR Construction dated 21 December 2012 for a period
commencing from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015, as
announced by the Company on 21 December 2012. It was
agreed, inter alia, that any construction, incidental design
and construction management services to be provided by
CR Construction and its subsidiaries (“CR Construction
Group”) or its associates to a member of Group should be
on normal commercial terms. Each transaction should be
either conducted at market price or at such other prices as the
parties may agree fairly and reasonably in the circumstances
as if they were independent third party. As CR Construction is
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRNC which in turn is the
ultimate holding company of the Company, CR Construction
is an associate of a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the
framework agreement will enable the Group to have a
sizeable construction service provider.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate
charges of provision of construction, incidental design
and construction management services provided by CR
Construction Group and its associates to the Group totaled
HK$29,674,000.

Finance related arrangements pursuant to Master
Lending Agreements and Strategic Cooperation
Agreement

On 22 November 2010, the Company issued an
announcement in connection with, among others, (i) the
proposal to provide greater flexibility in intra-group lending
between members of the group of China Resources Co.,
Limited (“CRC"), CRH and their respective subsidiary
companies; and (i) the provision of general banking services
including deposits services by Zhuhai Commercial Bank Co.,
Ltd. (now known as Zhuhai China Resources Bank Co.,
Ltd., “CR Bank”) to the Company, CR Land, CR Power,
CR Cement, CR Gas and China Resources Microelectronics
Limited (collectively “China Resources Group listed
companies”) and their subsidiaries.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

() EREREMBREKAIEHE> () Finance related arrangements pursuant to Master
mEEETEEE) Lending Agreements and Strategic Cooperation
Agreement (continued)
AT EBEK B ARIENERTHE - #t With respect to the intra-group lending arrangement, on
EEZERE([ER@H:E]) MEHEF 22 December 2010, the resolution to approve the master
ErRESREARERON S —TF lending agreements (“Master Lending Agreement”) and the
TZAZ T ZBRREFRAE LERE related annual caps were approved by the shareholders of
iR BEREEARAEE T —=F the Company at the extraordinary general meeting. The term
+TZA=+—HN=EFE - EREHE of the Master Lending Agreement is three years ending 31
B EMBRITZIENGEHERER S, December 2013. The Master Lending Agreement constitutes
FEEFEARRRNBUIENTESRAR a non-exempt continuing connected transaction under
AMBEMETEZ - BE-_ZT——F the Listing Rules and are subject to annual review by the
+ZA=+—HILFE - AAREFIRMEN independent non-executive directors of the Company and
A EREERMT the auditors of the Company. Information on all the above-
mentioned lending made for the year ended 31 December
2012 by the Group was as follows:
EEUND
BB RZZ—=F
ERAE +ZA=+—H
Borrower's EF& [y
immediate Interest Balance at
EHA %A holding ERA & HR rateper 31 December
Lender Borrower  company Guarantor Principal amount Duration annum 2012
EHEFBR AR EERG  ERARE EERfK  ARES500,000,000 10/82012- 504%  AR%500,000,000
China Resources CRC CRNC RMB 10/2/2013 RMB
Vanguard Co., Ltd.*
ERSTERR(RE)  BERG  =HEAF FERH  ARK300000000 1582012-  5.04% -
BRRR* CRC CRNC RMB 15/12/2012
ERRL(RE)RE EBRN  EEHERT EERG AK%100000000 1582012-  504%  AK100,000,000
BRAR* CRC CRNC RMB 15/2/2013 RMB
YN ZEEN  (RH(land)  FEHEE  E%r 800,000,000 12/10/2012- 2.85%  #71660,000,000
the Company CR Land Limited HK$ 12/412013 HK$
("CRHL")
/N EHEW  CRHL Z=HEE B 300,000,000  7/11/2012- 2.85%  7"7£300,000,000
the Company CRLand CRH HK$ 7/5/2013 HKS
VYN EHEW  CRHL =HEE B 720,000,000 14/12/2012- 2.85%  W7r720,000,000
the Company CRLand CRH HK$ 14/6/2013 HK$
Vi WN| #=EEH  CRHL EHEE %7£100,000,000 14/12/2012-  2.81% %7100,000,000
the Company (R Land CRH Us$ 14/6/2013 Us$
* AATKIMIEAR * a subsidiary of the Company
~~-— -——?.-_— ” \\ —”?
— = - v,
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(e) Finance related arrangements pursuant to Master

Lending Agreements and Strategic Cooperation
Agreement (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the aggregate
amount of interest received by the Group under the Master
Lending Agreement totaled HK$29,419,000.

With respect to the provision of general banking services by
CR Bank, pursuant to the strategic cooperation agreement
entered into by, among others, CR Bank and the China
Resources Group listed companies, any deposit made with
CR Bank under the strategic cooperation agreement will bear
the same interest and be on the same terms and conditions as
would apply to a similar deposit made by any other customer
of the bank, which rates are in accordance with the applicable
requirements of the People’s Bank of China from time to time.
The maximum exposure of outstanding deposits and interest
paid and anticipated to be paid in relation to the Group’s
deposits with CR Bank is RMB2,580 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the maximum daily
aggregate amount of outstanding deposits placed by the
Group with CR Bank totaled HK$2,568,892,000, and the
aggregate interest income arising from such deposits was
HK$8,669,000, which in aggregate represents approximately
16% of the total cash and bank balances of the Group as at
31 December 2012.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the directors engaged
the auditor of the Company to perform certain work on continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has provided a letter to the directors of
the Company and confirmed that, for the year ended 31 December
2012, the above continuing connected transactions:

(@  had received the approval of the directors of the Company;

(b)  involving the provision of services by the Group had been
entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company;

(©)  had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing such transactions;

(d)  had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions, on terms no less favorable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(0  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and associate as at 31
December 2012 are set out on pages 188 to 193.

Transactions in Securities of the Company and
Subsidiaries

Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by the
Company are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company'’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and the
aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
was less than 30% of the Group’s total value of purchases and total
turnover.

Auditors

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May
2012, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retired as the auditor of
the Company and Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed
as the new auditor of the Company.

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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To the shareholders of China Resources Enterprise, Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Resources
Enterprise, Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 115 to 193, which comprise the
consolidated and Company’s balance sheets as at 31 December 2012, and
the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

BB =T ——4F 1= =1—HIFFE For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Finance costs

Share of net results of associates

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

—E-CF —ET——%F

2012 2011

(&%)

(Restated)

FiaE BEEHET BEEETT
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
6 126,236 110,164
(95,835) (82,807)

30,401 27,357

7 4,459 2,807
(21,891) (19,334)
(6,003) (5,190)
8 (361) (224)
48 10

6,653 5,426
13 (1,631) (1,375)

9 5,022 4,051
3,945 3,013

1,077 1,038

5,022 4,051

15

HK$1.64 HK$1.25

HK$1.64 HK$1.25
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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— 4+ = H=+—HI4/Z For the year ended 31 December 2012

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(expenses):
Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations
Fair value adjustment on available for sale
investments
Fair value adjustment on derivative financial
instruments
Surplus on revaluation of properties
Reclassification adjustments:
— release of exchange differences upon
disposal of subsidiaries/associates
Income tax relating to surplus on revaluation
of properties
Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

—E——F —E——F
2012 2011
(&%)

(Restated)

BEEHET BEBHETT
HK$ million HK$ million
5,022 4,051

3 1,537

7 —

8 27

132 7

(6) -

(64) -

80 1,571

5,102 5,622
4,022 4,068
1,080 1,554
5,102 5,622
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FREITIE
EEIRIRITEET
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REAE

B 5 MEMERNRIA
TEEEmTH
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RBAEEFE
HEERRBAR

FRBEME
RHER
EIERR B E
TESEBTA
HAM3EREBIE

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
— Investment properties
— Interests in leasehold land
held for own use under
operating leases
— Other property, plant and
equipment
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Interests in associates
Available for sale investments
Prepayments
Deferred taxation assets

Current assets

Stocks

Trade and other receivables
Taxation recoverable
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Short term loans

Taxation payable

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long term loans

Deferred taxation liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

Other non-current liabilities

16
17
19
20
21
22
28

23
24

26
25
27A

27B
28
25
29
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—E-CF —T——%F —ET-TF
2012 2011 2010
(&%) (E5))
(Restated) (Restated)
BEEHET BEEET BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
12,735 11,180 9,904
6,266 5,901 4,984
37,970 33,159 26,555
14,948 10,755 9,654
295 310 219
389 432 376
128 31 23
2,258 305 311
992 762 556
75,981 62,835 52,582
21,242 20,715 15,626
13,744 11,534 6,843
125 51 46
391 258 234
16,005 18,256 14,071
51,507 50,814 36,820
(53,104) (45,487) (32,476)
- ® (22)
(4,374) (7,092) (4,151)
(706) (610) (849)
(58,184) (53,197) (37,498)
(6,677) (2,383) (678)
69,304 60,452 51,904
(13,352) (8,442) (8,158)
(1,499) (1,006) (787)
- - (14)
(669) (532) (347)
(15,520) (9,980) (9,306)
53,784 50,472 42,598
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R=ZF——F+=F=+—H At 31 December 2012

—E-—F —T——%F —ET-TF

2012 2011 2010
(&%) (E51)
(Restated) (Restated)

MizE BEBHBET BEBETT BEEETT
Notes  HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BARFHE Capital and reserves
A& Share capital 30 2,401 2,399 2,398
e Reserves 31 38,341 35,440 29,725
AABRRELER Equity attributable to

shareholders of the

Company 40,742 37,839 32,123
FEIEHI R RS Non-controlling interests 13,042 12,633 10,475
BER Total equity 53,784 50,472 42,598

BRER Chen Lang 24 Lai Ni Hium, Frank

Z#ZZ Director Z % Director
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BERER

BALANCE SHEET

RZF—Z4F+=H=+—H At31 December 2012

—E——F

—E-F

—T——%F

2012 2011 2010
(&%) (&%)
(Restated) (Restated)
FiEE BEEER BEEETT BEEETT
Notes  HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
FEREEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets
— &Y — Investment properties 16 66 54 54
—EfhzE - ek — Other property, plant and
B equipment 16 8 8 3
N EENGIP - Ea Interests in subsidiaries 18 24,960 16,453 18,483
25,034 16,515 18,540
REEE Current assets
B 5 R E M ER A Trade and other receivables 24 4,034 999 1,027
0 RIRITER Cash and bank balances 1,731 5,779 4,848
5,765 6,778 5,875
REAE Current liabilities
B 5 K E b e s Trade and other payables 26 (5,270) (3,983) (5,121)
R Taxation payable (5) (1) (1)
(5,275) (3,984) (5,122)
REBEEFE Net current assets 490 2,794 753
HEERABAR Total assets less current
liabilities 25,524 19,309 19,293
ERBERS Non-current liabilities
ERHTB A FIZRIE Amount due to a subsidiary 26 (7,343) - -
REMIBEE Deferred taxation liabilities 28 (1) (M -
18,180 19,308 19,293
BRARR S Capital and reserves
A& X Share capital 30 2,401 2,399 2,398
i Reserves 31 15,779 16,909 16,895
18,180 19,308 19,293

BB Chen Lang
#Z 5 Director

g Lai Ni Hium, Frank
Z#ZZ Director
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E/Eui//w%?%
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

B2 =F——F1+=H=—1—HIFZ For the year ended 31 December 2012

I\\/ \

—E-—=fF —E——fF
2012 2011
Bt aE BEEET BEEET
Notes HKS$ million HK$ million
REFH2RERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEMB RS Cash generated from operations 32A 10,622 9,479
BENEBEFIEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (144) (208)
25/ B A TS Chinese Mainland income tax paid (1,544) (1,470)
BEAHEINFIER Overseas profits tax paid (2) (7)
L%%i’éﬂ/a R Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 7 -
REFBEAMATSH Chinese Mainland income tax
refunded - 5
KETECHERANTE Net cash from operating activities 8,939 7,799
REZBHZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
HERTEEEMEHIE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 1,883 252
HERERESHIE Proceeds from disposal of available
for sale investments 5 -
HEMBAR, ¥ Disposal of subsidiaries/ousiness
(RBREHEZRE R (net of cash and cash equivalent
ReEE) disposed of) 32B 629 -
SEVE NSRS Dividends received from associates 38 10
BUIE ETRA T’%&éﬁ%@ Dividends received from unlisted
available for sale investments 1 1
BUFIE Interest received 387 317
BT REE) Receipt of government grants 595 325
U (0] 18 F — R B Repayment of loan to a holding
company 370 -
BERETEEZENE® Deposits paid for purchase of fixed
assets (1,961) -
WHENB AT ZEMNET® Deposits paid for acquisition of
subsidaries 611) -
ERT—HEZERAR Loan to a holding company (1,110) -
ERF—EAREENEAR Loanto a fellow subsidiary (2,455) _
BABRTEEE Purchase of fixed assets (6,933) (7,033)
BARMBILERE Purchase of other intangible assets (14) (64)
PN TN Acquisition of associates - (280)
WK B AR, %5 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
ORBR U I PRS2 (net of cash and cash equivalents
HeRREEE) acquired) 32C (1,565) (1,513)
BIRBIRITHEFE 2 Changes in pledged bank deposits (160) (24)
BRETHEAZERS Net cash used in investing activities (10,901) (8,009)
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Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Interest paid

Net proceeds from issue of ordinary
shares

Proceeds from bank and other
borrowings

Repayment of bank and other
borrowings

Purchase of additional interests in
subsidiaries

Net proceeds from partial disposal of
subsidiaries

Net cash from/(used in) financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

| 121
—E——F —E——F
2012 2011
BEHET BEEHETT
HK$ million HK$ million
(1,128) (1,271)
(111) (69)
(324) (159)
21 11
10,458 9,116
(9,095) (6,067)
(87) (84)
- 3,221
(266) 4,698
(2,228) 4,488
(23) (303)
18,256 14,071
16,005 18,256
16,005 18,256
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GARERSEDE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B2 =F——F1+=H=—1—HIFZ For the year ended 31 December 2012

#HEIZ AR 2R CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

il
i
Non- fgs
KRARRE(LRR controling Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
ekt
fiRe
Employee
B RHBE  fAERE  sharebased WndE ENRE RER
Share Share  Valuation  compensation Hedge  Exchange Retained Al
apitll  premium Teserve Teserve reserve reserve profits Total
EMEEn  EMREn  BBRER  RMEER  BMEER  BMREn  MMEEn  RBEERn  RMRER  AMEER
HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion  HKSmilion  HKSmilion  HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion  HKS million
RE—E12A=T- A3! December 011,

PliEs a5 reviusly eported 239 12957 u n (0] 361 1719 36,354 1268 3898
FRGPEIF R Adoptonof HKAS 12 (Amendments - - - - - - 148 14 5 1490
WoF——E+ZF=+-AR A3 December 2011 and 1 January 2012,

N E-E-f-B & a festated 2399 12,97 ) m ® 361 18,680 37839 12633 50412
BEH EREE Bxchangediferences on taslaing

foreign operations - - - - - 4 - 4 0] 3
fEERTAN ERTE Fairvalue acjusment on dervatie

financil instruments - - - - 4 - - 4 4 8
TEREL BEAE Fairvalue ajustment on avalable for sale

nvestments - - 1 - - - - 1 - 1
RHEMBATRZEL, Release of exchange dferences upon

EEER disosal ofsubsidres - - - - - 4 - 4 - 4
ArEBELamEL, Releas of exchange iferences upon

E22E disposel of assodates - - - - - (10 - (10) - (1)
EE T Surplus on revaluation of propertes - - 68 - - - - 68 - 68
TEERH Proft for the year - - - - - - 395 395 1\ 500
RERREME Totacomprehensiv income ortheyear - - 75 - 4 [ 395 40 1080 510
R Shates ssued at premium 1 19 - - - - - i - 2
RS Contrbution fom non-contoling nerest - - - - - - 1% 1 1 %
e N T Purchase of adcitona nerest i subscaries - - - - - - 26) 26) @) ®)
WENRLR Acquiston of subsicaries - - - - - - - - 1 1
HENBLA Disposa of subsidaris - - - - - - - - (51) (51)
8 Dividends - - - - - - (1,128) (1.128) (1) (139

2 19 55 - 4 ) 2805 2908 409 3312
i s e At 31 December 2012 2401 12,976 9 m - 3609 1485 40,742 13,08 53,784
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Fai|
ks
Nor- s
KLARRELRS antroling Totd
Equity attrbutable o sharenolders of the Company inerests equity
E&RH
fifeiE
Emplojee
Re REEE  BEEE  ceebsd  HHBE O ENRE  RERA
Share Share Valuation  compensation Hedoe Eichange Retained A
capial premim Tesene Tesene Tesene Tesene profis Total
AhEEn  A%EEn  BMRER  RMBET  MMEERT  AURER  RERER WERET  WMAET  AMEER
HSmilon — HKSmilon — HSmion — HSmlion — HSmiion — HSmion  HSmilon  HKSmilon  HKSmilon  HKS milion
RoB-FET2ATT-A0 A3 December 2010, peviously
PliEs reported 23% 947 0 mn ) 256 1272 30819 10470 41289
==V H) Adopton of KAS 12 (Amendments) - - - - - - 134 1304 ) 1309
RE-ZEHAZT-AR A3 December 2010and 1 lanvary 2011,
WE—5-5-0 | a festated 239% 12947 0 1 (9 258 14030 13 10475 5%
BEHEREE Bxchangediferences on tarslaing
foreign operations - - - - - 1026 - 1026 511 1537
fHSRIAN RESE Far vale adustment on ervatie
financil insruments - - - - 5 - - 5 1 i
et Surpls o revalaton of ropertes - - 4 B, B B ) 4 ] 7
TEEEH Proft or the year - - - - - - 3013 301 1038 4051
KEER AN Tota comprehensive income for the year - - 4 - 5 1026 303 4068 1554 5602
) Shates s at pemium f 10 - - - - - i B i
el Acauiiton of subscaries - - - - - - - - 0 0
BENELER Purchase of additonl nferest i
subsiciaries - - - - - - 2] 2] 61) )
HESIHBATN) Partal disposal of subsidaries (Note) - - - - - - 2931 2931 57 3458
8 Dividends - - - - - - [(h20)] (127 69) (134)
1 10 4 - 5 1026 465 5716 2198 1874
W-F——E+-f=1- At 31 December 2011 239 1297 u 1 (@) 3611 18,680 3783 12633 50472
et : REZT——F  AEBEHEEMRGRHERKZ  Note: In 2011, the Group disposed of its 40% interest in beverage business for a net

A% D BERHNBEERETzREAK
B - RBACR I - SRR A RERAR
SER B ENSE/ VRFRE+=BF A
M5 RS BERIEEA0%HE

cash consideration of approximately HK$3.2 billion. Pursuant to the shareholders
agreement, the non-controlling interest shall have the right to cause the Group to
purchase all the 40% equity interest at fair market value upon the eighth anniversary
or the thirteenth anniversary of the date of the agreement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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UEoh - AR e TS RS B IR A PR
% LR AR BB R BHEDIR E H
BRAKESE -

A

Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liabilities and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The directors regard the
ultimate holding company to be China Resources National Corporation
("CRNC"), a company established in the Chinese Mainland. The address
of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company is
disclosed in the annual report.

Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beer, food and beverage
businesses. The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and property investment, and the activities of its principal
subsidiaries and associate are shown on pages 188 to 193.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. Save as specified in the principal accounting
policies as set out in note 2, the financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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D(i) Adoption of new and revised standards, amendments and

interpretations

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
has issued a number of new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations on Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") that are effective
or available for early adoption for the financial year beginning 1 January
2012. In the current year, the Group has adopted the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations.

HKAS 12 (Amendments)  Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)  Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosures — Transfer of Financial Assets

In previous periods, the deferred tax consequences are assessed on
the basis that reflect the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects to recover the carrying amount of
the property. As a result of the adoption of HKAS 12 (Amendments),
the Group changed its accounting policy on deferred taxation related to
investment properties. Under the amendments, investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model are presumed to be
recovered through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes,
unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances. The
amendment is applicable retrospectively to annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2012 and the comparative figures have been restated
accordingly.
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T() EEF R &LEFTER - 85Tk D() Adoption of new and revised standards, amendments and
Z2E®) interpretations (continued)
WA RAD BT ERENSZZEN The effects on the consolidated and the Company’s financial statements
K are as follows:
23 = Pl
£1255 (1&3T)
&
Effect of
D28 adoption of
As previously amendments ]

reported to HKAS 12 As restated
BERETT BEBET BERET

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
B2 ——F Consolidation Profit and Loss
+=A=+—H1L account for the year ended
meBEEx 31 December 2011
H1E Taxation (1,556) 181 (1,375)
REEHEF| Profit for the year 3,870 181 4,051
RN BB PR A Profit attributable to
shareholders of the company 2,832 181 3,013
BIREF —EHAR Earnings per share — Basic HK$1.18 HK$0.07 HK$1.25
BIREF —#E Earnings per share — Diluted HK$1.18 HK$0.07 HK$1.25
HEEEAER Consolidation Balance Sheet
R=T——F As at 31 December 2011
t=A=+-—~H
EERIEA R Deferred taxation liabilities (2,496) 1,490 (1,006)
FE3 I R R Non-controlling interests 12,628 5 12,633
R Retained profits 17,195 1,485 18,680
HEEEAER Consolidation Balance Sheet
R=Z2——%—-F—H As at 1 January 2011
EERIBEE Deferred taxation liabilities (2,096) 1,309 (787)
FEVE I AR R A Non-controlling interests 10,470 5 10,475
REEN Retained profits 12,726 1,304 14,030
RAREEEER The Company’s Balance Sheet
R=T——F As at 31 December 2011
+t=A=+—~H
RIEFIE G E Deferred taxation liabilities 9) 8 )
R Retained profits 3,772 8 3,780
RAREEEER The Company’s Balance Sheet
R=-Z2——%—-F—H As at 1 January 2011
EEFIBEE Deferred taxation liabilities 8) 8 -
R Retained profits 3,768 8 3,776
S| AH M REIETER - BT R The adoption of other new and revised standards, amendments and
AREHASEREEE AR RIA interpretations has had no material effect on the results or financial
st BB EE RSN R E positions of the Group for the current and prior accounting periods.
REAZE - WHAVEL EMATE Accordingly, no prior period adjustments are required.

B -
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D (ii) Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations

that are not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued but
are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)  Presentation of Financial Statements
— Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)  Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)  Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)  Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

HKAS 32 (Amendments)  Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)  Government loans

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and

(Amendments) Transition Disclosures
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

The Group has not early applied the new standards, amendments and
interpretations that have been issued by the HKICPA but are not yet
effective. The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new standards, amendments and interpretations but
is not yet in a position to determine whether these new standards,
amendments and interpretations would have a material impact on its
results of operations and financial position.
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Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial
statements of the Company and of all its direct and indirect subsidiaries
and also incorporate the Group's interests in associates on the basis set
out in note 2D below. The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired
or disposed of during the year are included from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. All
material intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Prior to 1 January 2010, increases in interests in existing subsidiaries
were treated in the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries,
with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain being recognised where
appropriate. For decreases in interests in subsidiaries, regardless of
whether the disposals would result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries, the difference between the consideration received and the
carrying amount of the share of net assets disposed of was recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account.

From 1 January 2010 onward, changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries that do not involve a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, with no impact on goodwill
or profit or loss. When control of subsidiary is lost as a result of a
transaction, event or other circumstance, the Group derecognises all
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests at their carrying amount.
Any retained interest in the former subsidiary is recognised at its
fair value at the date the control is lost, with the gain or loss arising
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Restructuring accounting for asset swap transaction
involving entities under common control

Asset swap involving entities under common control are accounted for
using restructuring accounting. Under restructuring accounting, assets
and liabilities transferred to the Group are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements at their carrying values on the transaction date and
no goodwill or discount on acquisition is recognised. The consideration
for the disposal companies is the carrying values of the acquirees, while
the difference between carrying value of the acquirees and the disposal
companies is charged or credited to retained earnings, as an adjustment
arising on restructuring of companies under common control.
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Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or indirectly,
holds more than half of the issued share capital or controls more
than half of the voting power, or where the Company controls the
composition of its board of directors or equivalent governing body. In
the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are carried at
cost less any impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary nor a jointly
controlled entity, over which the Group is in a position to exercise
significant influence through participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee. The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the net assets of the associates, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates
are stated at the Group's share of net assets of the associates plus
goodwill arising on acquisitions. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate, which forms part of the carrying amount of an investment
in an associate, represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary prior to 1 January 2010
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary on or after 1 January 2010
represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree over
the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date
and whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwiill relates may be impaired. Such goodwill is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account and
is not reversed in a subsequent period. On subsequent disposal of a
subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001 continues to
be recognised as a deduction from equity and is not recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account when the Group disposes of all
or part of the business to which that goodwill relates or when a cash
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Prior to 1 January 2010, a discount on acquisition arising on an
acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the Group's interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition over the
cost of acquisition. Gain on bargain purchase arising on an acquisition
of a subsidiary on or after 1 January 2010 represents the excess of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
over the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
previously held equity interest in the acquiree. Discount on acquisition
or gain on bargain purchase arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account.
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F  Financial assets and liabilities

The Group'’s financial assets are classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss”, “loans and receivables”, “held-to-maturity
investments” and “available-for-sale investments” dependent on
the purpose for which the assets are acquired. Financial liabilities are
classified as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” and
“financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (other financial liabilities)”. Details of classifications and
measurements are as follows:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and have two sub-categories: financial
assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised directly in the profit and loss account in the
period in which they arise.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market which are initially measured at fair value. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. Objective evidence of impairment
includes significant financial difficulty of the debtors, the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(®)

(0

Loans and receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are initially
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are stated in the balance sheet at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the effective interest rate computed on initial recognition.

Objective evidence of impairment includes default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with the
operations of the investment.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through the profit and loss account.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(d)

(e)

Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories.

The Group holds certain investments in equity securities, that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be measured reliably. These available for sale
investments are stated at cost less impairment losses. Apart from
this, available for sale investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in the profit and loss account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the equity investment is
impaired.

Objective evidence of impairment includes significant financial
difficulty of the issuer or counterparty and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with the
operations of the investment.

For those investments carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the equity investment and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent periods. For
those investments carried at fair value, any subsequent increase
in the fair value of such equity investments is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in valuation
reserve.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the profit and loss account in the period in
which they arise.
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F Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

/)

(9)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in the
profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in the profit and loss account.

G Fixed Assets

(a)

(®)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings which
are held for long term rental and/or for capital appreciation. Such
properties are carried in the balance sheet at their fair value.
Changes in fair value of investment properties are recognised
directly in the profit and loss account in the period in which they
arise.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production or administrative purposes, are carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
construction expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs
capitalised and other relevant expenses directly attributable to
such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time when construction work is complete and the costs
of construction are transferred to the appropriate category of
fixed assets when available for use.
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R EBEEEE®E) G  Fixed Assets (continued)

() Rt - #EERRE (c) Other property, plant and equipment
BREMEREZETRRAIINZE Fixed assets other than investment properties and construction
TEEERERANERZFTER in progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
ZEHREEE (NG )T - accumulated impairment losses, if any.

HitEEEE 2T & IERTA Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off the cost
HEAFHRgEEE - RE AT of the assets over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
A AFRAER A AR account their estimated residual values, using the straight line
ERAK - FIpEERAFERF method. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
RS ELEEBMAER] - I adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The estimated
SN TMEHFE - L useful lives are as follows:
Rz st el ERAERBRIT
= BEERzE£B T ER - Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
REAKEREE SRR operating leases are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease term
- RN L 2 BFEREIAH - Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
PEEHEHARAFRRE over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
B2 B AR (205505 ) 5t estimated useful lives, being 20 to 50 years
ENE
- TEmEEE T3E10F - Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or over the
B¢ o) unexpired term of lease,
HEFH whichever is shorter
REPRREE
- hHE 5E15F - Vessels 5to 15 years
- RE®B 106 - Cold storage facilities 10 years
- KERB SE25F - Plantand machinery 5 to 25 years
- EREE 3E10%F - Furniture and equipment 3to 10 years

- sm 35 = Motor vehicles 3 to 8 years
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Fixed Assets (continued)
(d) Leased assets

(e)

0]

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases and are accounted for as if purchased whereby an
amount equivalent to cost is recorded as fixed assets and as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided in
accordance with the Group'’s depreciation policy. Payments
to the lessor are treated as consisting of capital and interest
elements. The interest element is charged to the profit and
loss account.

Operating lease charges

All leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from operating leases (net
of any benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease) is recognised in the profit and
loss account on a straight line basis over the periods of the
respective leases except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property.

Impairment of fixed assets
At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources

of information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that fixed asset other than investment properties are
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of

the asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is

recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such
impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.
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Fixed Assets (continued)

(e) Impairment of fixed assets (continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to the profit and loss account in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed asset
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the profit and loss
account.

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite useful lives are
stated at cost and are amortised on the straight line method over their
useful lives with amortisation commences when the asset is available for
use. The estimated useful lives of other intangible assets with finite useful
lives are as follows:

Brand names
Exploitation rights

10 to 20 years
17 to 20 years

These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each balance
sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts. Where indication of impairment exists, an impairment loss
is charged to the profit and loss account to reduce the assets to its
recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements, with limited exceptions. Deferred
taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised. Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled.
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Deferred taxation (continued)

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties, the presumption that the carrying amount of the investment
properties will be recovered through sales is not rebutted.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which is stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to management estimates based on prevailing
market conditions.

Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and packing
materials, work-in-progress, finished goods and merchandise for resale
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value or amortised into
expense based upon periods of usage.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the case of
retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-out basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling price less
all further costs of production and the related costs of marketing, selling
and distribution.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or
disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the assets’ or disposal groups’ previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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M Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments (including put options issued by the
Group over non-controlling interests in subsidiary companies that may
be settled by exchange of a variable amount of cash for a fixed number
of shares of the subsidiary companies) are recognised at fair value at
each balance sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading financial
assets/liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified as effective
hedging instruments. The Group designates certain derivatives as either
fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.

(a)

(b)

Fair value hedges

Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to changes in fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment.

For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair values of hedging instruments and hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the profit
and loss account in the periods in which fair value changes arise.

Cash flow hedges

Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedges are made
to hedge against exposure to variability in cash flows that are
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting, the
effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the changes in
fair value of hedging instruments is initially recognised in equity
and transferred to the profit and loss account when the hedged
item affects the profit and loss account. The ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

For the hedge of a forecast transaction that subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial
liability, the associated gains or losses are removed from equity
and included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the
asset or liability.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives
that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or are classified as held-
for-trading financial assets/liabilities are taken directly to the profit and
loss account.
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Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods necessary to
match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended
to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to the profit and
loss account over the expected useful life of the relevant asset.

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business and net of discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of services;
and interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account as it
accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is amortised to the consolidated profit and loss account over the
guarantee period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and charged to
the profit and loss account in the year incurred, except for costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of that assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities and debt
securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Foreign exchange

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the Group’s exchange
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account in the period which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before 1 January 2005
is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and
reported using the historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.
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Share-based payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees and other
participants, for their services rendered, to subscribe for shares of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s share option scheme.
The fair value of services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date and is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (employee share-based compensation reserve).

Investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined annually by
independent valuer on market value for existing use basis or calculated
on the net rental income and allowing for reversionary income
potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date and appropriate capitalisation rates of the net rental
income. These estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and transactions entered into by the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2E. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amounts of cash generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The recoverable amounts have been determined
either based on value-in-use calculations or the cash-generating units’
fair value less costs to sell. Details of the key assumptions are disclosed
in Note 18.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, bank balances and derivative financial instruments entered
into.
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Credit risk (continued)

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk to trade and
other receivables as its customer bases are widely spread across diverse
industries and geographical locations. For its retail businesses and some
transactions in its beer and beverage businesses, sales of products are
made in cash. The Group has policies in place to ensure that open
account customers are financially viable and with an appropriate
credit history. To minimise its credit risk exposure, credit evaluations
are performed for the determination and approval of credit limits
granted and other monitoring procedures are implemented to ensure
that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
regular reviews on aging and recoverability are performed to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

In respect of bank deposits and transactions involving derivative financial
instruments, the Group has procedures and policies in place to ensure
they are made to counterparties with good credit rating.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set out
in note 35, the Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk as at 31 December 2012.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of adequate committed credit facilities to fund capital,
prospective investment opportunities, debt servicing obligations and
dividend payments. Management also closely monitors the Group’s
rolling forecast and actual cash flows and maturity profiles of financial
liabilities.

Other than short term loans, long term loans and derivative financial
instruments, all other financial liabilities of the Group are non-interest
bearing. The following table details the outstanding contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s borrowings and
derivative financial instruments, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance
sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay. For
derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted net cash
inflow/(outflow) is presented. Whereas they require gross settlement,
the undiscounted gross inflow/(outflow) is presented.
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212
Fixed rate borrowings
Other loans

Variable rate borrowings
Bank loans

Derivatives - net settlement
Interest rate swaps

2011
Fixed rate borrowings
Other loans

Variable rate borrowings
Bank loans

Other loans

Finance lease

Derivatives - net settlement
Interest rate swaps

Liquidity risk (continued)

EHEES )

ReRELE

R-EZF R-ZLE Total
- 28 | contractual BEE
Within Between 1 Between 2 BBAEF  undiscounted Carrying
Tyear  and2years to5years  Over5years cash flow amount
A¥EET A¥EET E¥EER REBET REBET REBET
HK$ million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
(4,621) (2,898) (10,744) @) (18,266) (17,726)
(4,621) (2.898) (10,744) ?) (18,266) (17,726)
@) 9 - - (12) (1)
(7,186) (3,406) (5,235) () (15,831) (15,495)
27) - - - 27) 27)
(1 - - - (1 )
(7.214) (3,406) (5,235) ) (15,859) (15,523)
7.217) (3415) (5,235) ) (15,871) (15,534)
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Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from its long term and
short term borrowings. Borrowings at fixed and floating interest rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest
rate risk respectively. To cover interest rate risk, the Group maintains the
loan portfolio in a preferred fixed/floating interest rate mix and review
regularly. To avoid undue concentration of risk, the Group entered into
interest rate swaps to mitigate current and future corporate profitability
from interest rate volatility.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31
December 2012 would decrease/increase by HK$177 million (2011:
decrease/increase by HK$145 million).

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on a hypothetical
situation. In reality, market interest rates would not change in isolation.
In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for reference purpose
and should not be considered a projection of the future profits or losses.

Currency risk
Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong Kong and
have their local currencies as their functional currencies.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 98% (2011: 98%) of the Group's sales are demoninated
in the group entity’s respective functional currencies, whilst
approximately 98% (2011: 98%) of costs are denominated in the
group entity’s respective functional currencies.
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Currency risk (continued)
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the balance
sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

—E-CF —T——F
2012 2011

BE =X AE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BEEER BEEET AEEET BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
674 106 211 12
1,392 3,853 2,061 436
17 - 37 -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
or decrease in the Hong Kong dollars against the Renminbi. Under
the linked exchange rate system, the financial impact on exchange
difference between Hong Kong dollar and US dollar will be immaterial
and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase in profit and other equity where the relevant foreign currency
strengthens 5% against Hong Kong dollars. For a 5% weakening of the
relevant foreign currency against Hong Kong dollars, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity.

HHBER (BB hye HEREMARBINYE
Effect on profit/ Effect on other
(loss) after tax components of equity
—E-C-F —E——F —E-CF —E——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
BAMEETR BEBET BMEETR BEBEBT
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
28 10 - -

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on a hypothetical
situation. In reality, market exchange rates would not change in isolation.
In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for reference purpose
and should not be considered a projection of the future profits or losses.



AEBEBETEAEENEN - &2
BREEANERERELE [
BREBERERAERNBL - 12
MR D3R - REBEEE
SR —FEALEE -

f

=

5 Ot 3R Ml

REBNENEERRER (21
Aot EAEENEER) BE kAR
TEEY  ARFEERFA ARG
(B RaEBRMEEN
BETEA - FERREDR) -

rEEEEEETHERELNES -
AEBEBEAKAREBEARN
HEARR - WERBXNEE - #1T
i AEEHRITEERE@R
BEHETN  HEBELGBIE
1 o

EEEEERETIIEE ZWA :

HES
RREHAR
Hel

R EABIA

> S BO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 8 %3 &EMizE | ANNUAL REPORT £#% 2012 | 147

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 27, cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the raise of bank
borrowings or the redemption of existing debt.

—E-=fF —T——F
2012 2011
BEEER BEEET
HKS$ million HK$ million

Turnover comprises revenue

from:

Sales of goods 118,520 103,565
Rendering of services and others 7,060 6,026
Rental income 656 573

126,236 110,164
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EESD Operating segments
SIBEAR A RIS AR R G Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
THIEE ZWA : the internal reporting for resource allocation and assessment of
performance.
&R
HipEH
gE BE RE #8  Investments 1 At
Retail Beer Food Beverage  and Others  Elimination Total
EUEEL  E¥EER  BYEER  RYEER  HMEER  BMEER  BEEER
HKSmillion ~ HKSmillion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmillion ~ HKSmillion ~ HKS million  HKS million
HZ-2--F  Fortheyearended
+-B=1-8 31 December 2012
LEE
EEE TURNOVER
HIMNEE External sales 83415 29713 10,106 478 - - 126,236
£HRHE Inter-segment sales* 91 91 3 pl - (479) -
=5l Tota 83,506 28,064 10379 4,766 - (479) 126,236
PERE Segment result** 3,695 2,362 508 181 - 6,746
FEHEH Unallocated corporate
A expenses (118)
MEMA Interest income 386
iy Finance costs (31)
BB AR Profit before taxation 6,653
WA Taxation (1,631)
FERER Profit for the year 5,022
R=%-2% As at 31 December 2012
TZA=1-H
B ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets 68,751 41,878 7,583 2,280 - 120,492
BitiEgE Deferred taxation assets 992
MREHE Taxation recoverable 125
FEHEH Unallocated corporate
RAEPAE assets 5479
GAEELE Consolidated total
assets 127,488
8f LIABILITIES
NEBR Segment liabilties 36,434 21,285 1,092 1,028 - 59,839
JEffTIE Taxation payable 706
EitiEsfk Deferred taxation
liabilities 1499
FEHEH Unallocated corporate
RAEHERE liabilities 11,660
GAEEAR Consolidated total
liabilities 73,704
EthER OTHER INFORMATION
ERRY Capital expenditure 9,686 3,859 495 70 1 14,111
WERER Depreciation and
amortisation 1,533 1,462 214 82 1 3292
FEAMESE  Imparment loss
recognised 7 20 5 - - 232
RENEEMES  Valuation gainon
Investment properties 2,166 - 1 - - 2,167
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For the year ended
31 December 2011
(Restated)

TURNOVER
External sales
Inter-segment sales*

Total
Segment result**

Unallocated corporate
EXDEnses

Interest income

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

As at 31 December 2011
(Restated)

ASSETS
Segment assets
Deferred taxation assets
Taxation recoverable
Unallocated corporate
assets

Consolidated total
assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Taxation payable
Deferred taxation
liabilities
Unallocated corporate
liabilities
Consolidated total
liabilities
OTHER INFORMATION
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and
amortisation
Impairment loss
recognised
Valuation gain on
Investment properties

REBERAN o
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Operating segments (continued)
RE
Rt

& i R @ Investments it ol
Retai Beer Food Beverage and Others Elimination Total
A¥EET  AYEEn  BMEEr  ABEET  A¥EER  AMEER B¥EER
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
69,992 26,609 10,500 3,063 - - 110,164
9% 80 206 49 - (431) -
70,088 26,689 10,706 3,12 - (431) 110,164
2,649 2173 449 192 (1) 5,462
(113)
301
(224)
5,426
(1375)
4,051
56,168 40,466 8,367 1917 - 106,918
762
51
5918
113,649
29,839 21,999 1487 829 1 54,155
610
1,006
7406
63,177
4,034 5,083 744 379 6 10,246
1,304 1325 213 51 1 2,894
- 357 15 4 - 376
112 - 16 - - 1137

*k

Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates.

Segment result represents earnings before interest income, finance costs and

taxation.
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EE D Geographical segments
HEIR it HiER
&8 Chinese Other &t
Hong Kong Mainland Countries Total
BERET BERET BERET BERET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BE-8--F Turnover for the year ended
+=A=+-H 31 December 2012
LEENEXE 8,740 116,331 1,165 126,236
R-B——#& As at 31 December 2012
+=A=1+-AH
ERBEE (M) Non-current assets (Note) 13,756 61,103 2 74,861
BE-Z——-& Turnover for the year ended
+=A=+-H 31 December 2011
LEENERE 8,817 100,000 1,347 110,164
R-B——f As at 31 December 2011
+=A=1+-AH
FERBEE () Non-current assets (Note) 12,840 48,734 468 62,042
ek FETBEETREIEREREL Note: Non-current assets excluded available for sale investments and deferred
RIBEE - taxation assets.
—E—C—fF —T——4F
2012 2011
BEHET BERET
HKS$ million HK$ million
Htt W A BRET5IRIE ! Other income includes the
following:
RAFLTMAERENRE Dividends from unlisted available
for sale investments 1 1
] BUA Interest income 386 301
BEMESHBH Valuation gain on investment
properties 2,167 1,137
RAEH & — [ & AR 2 A Profit on deemed disposal of an
associate - 30
HEMB AR, EBHEET Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/
business 192 -
o E B A R PTS s A Profit on disposal of associates 65 7
HEREREMBRET Profit on disposal of available for
sale investments 2 -
HEBEEEMSHF Profit on disposal of fixed assets 307 28
O RER I T4 Bh Government grants recognised 319 97
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Interests on bank loans and other

loans wholly repayable within
five years

Financing charges

Less: Amount capitalized in cost of

*

qualifying assets*

—E-CF —ET——%F
2012 2011
BEHET BEEHETT
HK$ million HK$ million
323 163

67 63

390 226

(29) )

361 224

During the year, the weighted average capitalization rate on funds borrowed

generally is 1.20% per annum.
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ZRABSREERE T AN L
T o

—E-—=fF —E——fF
2012 2011
BEEER BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
Profit for the year has been
arrived at after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration
— current year 22 28
— underprovision in prior year 3 -
25 28
Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) 13,833 11,435
Depreciation
— Owned assets 3,274 2,877
Impairment loss recognised
on (included in selling and
distribution expenses or
general and administrative
expenses)
— fixed assets 39 88
— other intangible assets 1 7
—stock 192 281
Amortisation of other intangible
assets (included in general and
administrative expenses) 18 17
Operating leases charges on
land and buildings (Note 1) 4,142 3,335
Cost of goods sold 95,481 82,449
And after crediting:
Gross rental income 656 573
Less: Related out-goings (21) 23)
Net rental income 635 550
Note:
1. Including contingent rent of HK$125 million (2011: HK$79 million).

Contingent rent for certain properties was determined by a certain percentage

of turnover.
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—E——fF —T——F
2012 2011
BEHEBT BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
e Fees 1.62 1.67
HEARH& MERL Basic salaries and allowances 12.94 8.53
NESHK Provident fund contributions 0.41 0.33
TEAT Bonus 7.65 8.43
22.62 18.96
e Rftie
Fees Other Emoluments
Exgé
R NESHF “E-—-f
Basic Provident &it
Salaries and Fund A At 20M
“E-CF 2012 Allowances  Contributions Bonus' Total Total
BEEER BEEER AEEER BEEER BEBER BEBER
BEfF Name of director HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million
88 Chen Lang 0.08 253 0.14 1.70 445 458
A Hong Jie 0.03 213 0.06 - 282 -
e Liu Hongji 0.03 2.26 0.05 282 5.16 -
Pk Lai Ni Hium, Frank 0.08 376 0.07 1.63 5.54 8.86
HXR Du Wenmin 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08
] Yan Biao 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08
it Wei Bin 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08
E1eE Huang Daoguo 0.05 - - - 0.05 -
RE Chen Ying 0.05 - - - 0.05 -
EAE Houang Tai Ninh 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
i LiKa Cheung, Eric 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
g58 Cheng Mo Chi 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
RER Bernard Chamwut Chan 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
B Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
Bt Qiao Shibo 0.05 1.66 0.09 1.50 330 409
£ Shi Shanbo 0.03 - - - 0.03 0.08
Rk Zhang Haipeng 0.03 - - - 0.03 0.08
BEA Chan Po Fun, Peter - - - - - 0.08
At Total 1.62 1294 041 7.65 22,62 -
- 2011 167 853 033 84 - 189

AL EMELLEEE @
RALTERR KRBT S5

T -

1 The bonus is determined with reference to the operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics during both years.
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FARLURSFHEREEML(=F
—— ZRDESF - FBEENLEX
Mzt o Ep—f(ZE——%F: =
) & B S N 2 BNE F 15

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2011:
two) directors, details of whose remunerations are set out in note 10
above. The details of the remunerations paid to the other one (2011:

three) highest paid employees are as follows:

R
—E—C—F —E——F
2012 2011
BEHET B HETT
HK$ million HK$ million
HAH ¢ KER Basic salaries and allowances 1.95 6.75
NESER Provident fund contributions 0.14 0.19
14T Bonus 1.39 9.15
3.48 16.09

W (ZF——%F : =) &RS%

B F T HIEE

The emoluments of this one (2011: three) highest paid individuals were
within the following band:

AB
No. of person
—B-=F T
BT HK$ 2012 2011
3,000,001-3,500,000 3,000,001-3,500,000 1

4,500,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-5,500,000
5,500,001-6,000,000

4,500,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-5,500,000
5,500,001-6,000,000

[N

B &3 A

AEEXREZEEFEL2EEES

87 FRRHEFURIRETE - 258
CEERAEBEESHATE I
HEBYERCESRHAE - ®EED
RIFEEEARSF S 2 EBMEE
B MBEBREIEEZEZEME

Hong Kong

The Group operates various defined contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all Hong Kong employees. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The amount of contributions is based
on a specified percentage of the basic salary of employees and any
forfeited contributions in respect of unvested benefits of staff leavers

Y FH R B R AR IR AR S 8 2 15K

are used to reduce the Group's contributions.

—E——F —T——%F
2012 2011
BYEHER BEEET
HKS$ million HK$ million
AEBHBENES ZHR Group contributions to staff
provident fund 42 43
[REDE P2l g S Forfeited contributions utilised - (1
BiraBmix bk 258 Amount charged to consolidated
profit and loss account 42 42

i AR B 2R R

Un-utilised forfeited contributions -
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Chinese Mainland

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss account in
respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the Chinese Mainland
amounted to approximately HK$1,469 million (2011: HK$1,117
million).

—E-CF —ET——%F
2012 2011
(E251)
(Restated)
BERET B EHETT
HK$ million HK$ million
Current taxation
Hong Kong 155 124
Chinese Mainland 1,524 1,287
Overseas 3 12
1,682 1,423
Deferred taxation
Hong Kong 9) 4
Chinese Mainland 42) (52)
1,631 1,375

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

Chinese Mainland income tax has been provided for based on the
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax laws
applicable to the subsidiaries in the Chinese Mainland. Overseas taxation
is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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AEFBFBEBRMATGENZ HIES R The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
REREAEERREARETE theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic rates applicable
ZIERTAR BB to the country concerned as follows:
—E-CF —ET——%F
2012 2011
(251)
(Restated)

BEHET B HET
HK$ million HK$ million

BB AR (T BEEEEE QR Profit before taxation (excluding
ZHEAEFE) share of net results of associates) 6,605 5,416
NEBRRERREGTE 2 FIA Tax calculated at the domestic
rates applicable in the country
concerned 1,360 1,025
IR 2 A Income not subject to taxation (630) (298)
AR 2 i Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 206 169
AR AARE R TIE Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (132) (50)
REWER2TIA Tax loss not recognised 614 434
EFED () BEZHE Under/(over) provision on taxation
in previous year 83 (19)
a AR EER R I (M) Income earning companies
exempted from taxation (note) (81) (33)
AOBFEZ BIATEFR Withholding tax on undistributed
profits 211 147
MBS H Taxation charge 1,631 1,375
Bf3E Note:
RE BB HIERE A 2 ERTE QR A = Certain of the Group's subsidiaries operating in the Chinese Mainland are eligible for
ETFBREREPLARBES - WREEFE certain tax holidays or concessions and were exempted and reduced from Chinese

RSO DT BN PTEE o Mainland income taxes for the year.



T FMEIREREHKRE
R E BB %50.157T
(ZZ——%F : B#0.157T)

T FRERE RIS
R E B S %50.157T
(ZZ——%F : ##0.327T)

EARRRRN_E—=F=A=+—
BETHNE® L  ESEIRARHK
BEERERRERK 1S (ZE——
F o BHE0.327T) o BURIRE TR
RARBTESSSHEANTA
BREE  ZEREWERT
HENERERE - NEEHE®R
ERRBADRIRT R EBER
AR —FENRERER=
T-—FEMNPHRE  BEAE
1,128 &L (ZE——F : Bk
1271887 °

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 8% &EMizF | ANNUAL REPORT £#% 2012 | 157

—E——F —E——F

2012 2011
BEHET BEEHETT
HK$ million HK$ million

2012 interim dividend paid of
HK$0.15 (2011: HK$0.15) per
ordinary share 360 360

2012 proposed final dividend of
HK$0.15 (2011: HK$0.32) per
ordinary share 360 768

720 1,128

At the meeting held on 21 March 2013, the directors proposed final
dividend of HK$0.15 (2011: HK$0.32) per ordinary share. This proposed
dividend, which is calculated on the Company’s number of ordinary
shares as at the date of the board meeting, is not recognised as a
liability in these financial statements. The total dividends paid by the
Company, including the final dividend for the year 2011 and the interim
dividend for the year 2012, amounting to HK$1,128 million (2011:
HK$1,271 million) are reflected in the current year financial statements.
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SIRER RSB RS T
BEHY -

B
R ESRER R EER TR
AR RIBCR G

RE2EE
AT ESBREARNIN
EBAR RTS8

HEBEBKR BT E

—HBRhE

RAFTESE#E RN
BB

The calculation of the basic and
diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:

Earnings

Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the
purposes of calculating basic
and diluted earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
— Share options

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share

—E-CF —T——%F
2012 2011

(&%)

(Restated)

BERET BEBHET
HK$ million HK$ million
3,945 3,013
—E-CF —ET——%F
2012 2011
2,400,353,822  2,398,928915
3,425,292 4,928,267
2,403,779,114  2,403,857,182
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KHEER
fegEn
1R
Interests in y X
leasehold EfthE - BERRE .
Jand held Other property, plant and equipment
forown BRET Eft
REN% use under Buildings BTLE
Investment ~ operating heldfor ~ Other fixed gt ait
properties |eases own use assets Sub-total Total
AUEET  B%EEn  AMEET  BMEEn WMEET BEEER
HKS millon HKS million HKS millon HKS million HKS milion HKS millon
158 The Group
BAF[AE Cost or valuation
RZF—F-F-R At 1 January 2011 9904 5,682 13288 25489 38771 54,363
EXER Exchange difference 39 278 708 1543 2251 2,568
WENBLA/ $REEA Relating to acquisition of subsidiarieslousiness 69 413 420 1011 1431 1913
HERREIAERBEN Relating to businesses injected by non-controling interests - bl 67 268 3% 362
RE Additions 4 428 179 6,422 6,601 7033
k=3 Disposals - (53) 1) (774) (815) (868)
Exipr| Redlassffications 2 (6) 622 (669) () (26)
BfERE Adjustment on valuation 1137 - 7 - 7 1,144
RZZ——FF+-A=t-BRk  At31December 2011 and
“T-2%-f-R 1 January 2012 11,180 6,769 15,250 3329 48,540 66,489
EXER Exchange difference - (16) (5) 11 6 (10)
RENBAR £BREA Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries/business - 54 1567 143 1715 1769
HEMBAR/ EREBED Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/business - (1 (80) (997) (1,077) (1,078)
HE Additions 9 584 336 719 7,535 8,128
e Disposals (934) (152) (474) (2,029 (2,503) (3.589)
Eripd Redlassfications 313 1 817 (1,200) (3%9) (75)
BfERE Adjustment on valuation 2,167 - 132 - 132 2,29
RoF-—E+-F=+-0  At31December 2012 12,735 7239 17,543 36416 53,959 73933
ZHITERAE Accumulated depreciation and impaiment
R=EF-—%-5-A At 1 January 2011 - 698 2,261 9,961 1222 12920
EXER Exchange difference - 40 178 739 917 957
TEENE Charge for the year - 139 493 2,245 2,138 2877
HEAR Written back on disposals - (1) (20 (539) (555) (567)
BRDAERE Impairment loss recognised - 3 13 7 85 88
Exipy ] Redlassifications - - (29) 3 (26) (26)
RZF——FF+-A=1t-BRk  At31December 2011 and
“T-2%-f-R 1 January 2012 - 868 2,89 12,485 15,381 16,249
EXER Exchange difference - 5 (20) (12) (32) (27)
HENBAR/ $REED Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/ousiness - - 63) (586) (649) (649)
TEENE Charge for the year - 150 591 2533 3124 3274
HERE Written back on disposals - (49) n) (1,529 (1,800 (1.849)
ERAREEE Impairment loss recognised - - 4 35 39 39
Exivy Redlassfications - (1) (10) (64) (74) (75)
RoF-—H+-F=+-8  At31December 2012 - 973 3127 12,862 15,989 16,962
SHYE Net book values
RoE-ZE+ZA=+-8  A31December 2012 12,735 6,266 14,416 23554 37970 56,971
RoF-—E+-f=+-8  AM31December 2011 11,180 5,901 12,354 20,805 33,159 50,240
BMIARGIEL B Representing assets stated:
o At cost - 7239 17,543 36,416 53,959 61,198
BoE-CFEERE At 2012 professional valuation 12,735 - - - - 12,735
12,735 7239 17,543 36,416 53,959 73933
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Htbs - BERRE
Other property, plant and equipment
RENF HftEE
Investment BT Other Nt At
properties Buildings assets Sub-total Total
BEEET  AEBEER BEEET BEEET BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS million HKS million
NG The Company
KA fEE Cost or valuation
RZZ——%-A-H At 1 January 2011 54 2 21 3 71
RE Additions - - 6 6 6
HeE Disposals - - 1) (1) 1)
RZE——4F+ZA=+—HARk  At31December2011and
“E2-—E-f-H 1January 2012 54 2 26 28 82
hE Additions - - 1 1 1
BEFE Adjustment on valuation 12 - - - 12
RZZ-—F+-R=t+-H At 31 December 2012 66 2 27 29 9%
EFTERAE Accumulated deprecition
and impairment
RZE——5-A-H At 1 January 2011 - 1 19 20 20
REEHE Charge for the year - - 1 1 1
HEEE Written back on disposals - - (1) (1) (1)
W-Z—%+-A=+—-AKk  At31December2011and
—ET-_f-f-H 1 January 2012 - 1 19 20 20
rEERE Charge for the year - - 1 1 1
W-Z-—F+-A=+-H At 31 December 2012 - 1 20 21 21
REFE Net book values
W_Z-—F+-A=+-H At 31 December 2012 66 1 7 8 74
W_Z——%+-A=+-H At 31 December 2011 54 1 7 8 62
BTAIAASIR B - Representing assets stated:
R At cost - 2 27 29 29
BoE-—FEERE At 2012 professional valuation 66 - - - 66
66 2 27 29 %
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—E-=fF —T——F
2012 2011
BEEER BEEET
HKS$ million HK$ million
Carrying amounts of the property
interests comprise:
The Group
Hong Kong
Properties held on long lease 8,571 7,493
Properties held on medium-
term lease 3,726 3,630
Chinese Mainland
Properties held on long lease 253 631
Properties held on medium-
term lease 19,471 16,029
Properties held on short lease 1,396 1,629
Overseas
Properties held on medium-
term lease - 1
Properties held on short lease - 12
33,417 29,435
The Company
Hong Kong
Properties held on medium-
term lease 66 54
Chinese Mainland
Properties held on medium-
term lease 1 1
67 55

—T——F+-A=+—H2Z®EE A  The investment properties have been valued at 31 December 2012 by

MECHBYEELEMBERIT DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional valuer.
BRARMELGE - (HEHLRRE The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of recent

BYEE MBI S EMETE ° transaction prices for similar properties.
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C EMETEETIEEEMEIR - B Other fixed assets mainly comprise construction in progress, plant and
Moo  THEMER(E - Miifh - machinery, leasehold improvements, vessels, cold storage facilities,
REHRME MR RTE - furniture and equipment and motor vehicles.

EEIR BERE AENERS
Construction Plant and Leasehold Hit fit
inprogress  machinery  improvements Others Total
A¥aET  A¥RET  A%EER  B%EER  A¥AEER
HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HKS million HKS million

rEE The Group
RASEE Cost or valuation

RZE—F-H-H At 1 January 2011 1,030 17,050 3,893 3516 25,489
ERES Exchange difference 83 1,093 215 147 1,543
WEHBRR/ £HBEA Relating to acquisition of

subsidiaries/business 97 839 7 68 1,01
R EAZBEEN Relating to businesses injected by

non-controlling interests 1 252 1 14 268
AE Additions 3,884 726 1,091 1 6,422
e Disposals (19) (219) (270) (266) (774)
BHHE Redlassifications (1,698) 704 228 97 (669)
WZZ——F+-A=t—HK  At31December 2011 and

—Z-—-5-A-H 1 January 2012 3,383 20,445 5,165 4,297 33,290

ERES Exchange difference 15 3) 3 o] 1
WERBAR/ £HBEA Relating to acquisition of

subsidiaries/business 2 44 57 45 148
MERBAR/ EHRHEL Relating to disposal of

subsidiaries/business 77 42) - (878) (997)
NE Additions 4,445 601 1,409 744 7,199
HeE Disposals 6) (1,400) (209) @14 (2,029
BHOE Redlassifications (3.227) 1,610 151 260 (1,206)

W-E-—%+-A=+-H At 31 December 2012 4,535 21,255 6,576 4,050 36/416
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EEIR BERE HENEERE
Construction Plant and Leasehold 2t At
in progress machinery  improvements Others Total
BEEET AYEET BEBRET BEBRET BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million HKS million

ZHTERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
W-E——F-A-H At 1 January 2011 1 6,368 1,853 1,739 9,961
ERER Exchange difference - 559 % 86 739
TEENE Charge for the year - 1,269 529 447 2,245
HEAE Written back on disposals (1) (133) (229) (172) (535)
BRAZAEES Impairment loss recognised - 67 - 5 72
ENHE Reclassifications - (38) 13 28 3
WZE——F+ZA=+-HRk  At31December 2011 and
“£--%#-8-H 1 January 2012 - 8,092 2,260 2,133 12,485
EREE Exchange difference - (1) (5) ) (12)
HENBAT,/ £BBES Relating to disposal of
subsidiaries/business - 24) - (562) (586)
KEENE Charge for the year - 1338 602 593 2,533
HERR Written back on disposals - (1,024) (153) (352) (1,529)
BRAZRERR Impairment loss recognised - 26 Q) 10 35
Eips] Redlassifications - (135) - 7 (64)
R-B-—#+-A=1-8 At 31 December 2012 - 8272 2,703 1,887 12,862
REFE Net book values
RZZE-—F+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2012 4535 12,983 3873 2,163 23,554
RZE—F+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2011 3,383 12,353 2,905 2,164 20,805
BTSHAIIRZERE Representing assets stated:
R At cost 4,535 21,255 6,576 4,050 36,416
F_T-CEHXEE At 2012 professional valuation - - - - -

4,535 21,255 6,576 4,050 36416
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JEN =R
URBER BN A, ¥ETE
R-Z—F+-_A=+—H8BK
—E——%—HF—H
ERERE
U BE B A, ¥5
RZE—=—F+=A=+—H
ZEHREEE

RZE—F+=—A=+—H"
—ET——F—F—HEK
—E——F+-A=+—8

BRMEE

RZE——F+=—A=+—H

RZE—F+=ZA=+—H

HERAE P EERESELEN
(TCGU)) » BT AKEBEITH IR
ERMBEEREED BB 2 EE
B - UTRBEIEZOBHE

CGUz R Bl BTy iZERERE
STEAET c REEFARAR
BEBRERBZAFHMIEEEM
ER Z2 B R e RE - BHAFH
ZBRERERABEILRES|FRE
¥ MArARESRENRETER
B2 \BERINAYTEE -

BEBHETT
HK$ million
The Group
Cost
At 1 January 2011 9,671
Exchange difference 266
Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 835
At 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012 10,772
Exchange difference 7)
Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 4,200
At 31 December 2012 14,965
Accumulated impairment losses
At 31 December 2011,
1 January 2012 and
31 December 2012 17
Carrying values
At 31 December 2012 14,948
At 31 December 2011 10,755

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash generating
units (“CGU"), each of which represent an operating entity within the
operating segments identified by the Group for the purpose of segment
reporting. A segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is

presented below:

—E-C—F T ——%F

2012 2011

BEEREBT BEEET

HK$ million HK$ million

Retail 8,598 4,400
Beer 5,836 5,836
Food 486 491
Beverage 28 28

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on a value
in use calculation. These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period and a discount rate of 8.5% per annum. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using the nominal growth rates stated
below.
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FRBESNEELZTERE Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:

BHRESREBAND A2
ERERRE
Nominal growth rate
beyond the initial
cash flow projections

(%)
—=——F —T——1F
2012 2011
TE Retail 8% 10%
i Beer 8% 5%
B Food 8% 3%
N Beverage 8% 5%
—E——F —T——4F
2012 2011
BYEEET BERET
HK$ million HK$ million
b N The Company
JEETRD » BAE Unlisted shares, at cost 12,628 12,158
JEUHIIE A RIFIAE Amounts due from subsidiaries 12,332 4,295
RZE——_F+-A=+—Hz* Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2012 are set out
EMBARFIETIENE188EEE on pages 188 to 193.

1938 °
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HBEE
BE REE Shrimp
Brand Exploitation